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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERE®E

GROUP RESULTS

Turnover of the Group for the current year of 2008/09 is HK$1,626
million as compared with last year’s HK$1,540 million, and the overall
profit has dropped to HK$72 million (2007/08: HK$ 142 million).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

In general our garment business remained stable despite the weak
economy worldwide. However our overall profits as forecasted in our

interim report had dropped mainly due to the following reasons:-

Foreign exchange losses on Euro and Pound Sterling during the

current year.

2. Our Wuxi textile operations’ operating profits reduced drastically

as compared with last year.

3. Revaluation loss on our investment properties in both Hong Kong

and Macau as compared with revaluation gain of last year’s.

OUTLOOK

Overall, the directors expect the coming year to be extremely difficult

and results to be drastically dropped.

Although our sales revenue for the current year had recorded a slight
increase, we do not anticipate it to be the same for the coming year
as our major markets’ economy continues to slacken. The coming year
will be difficult and challenging for our textiles and garment operations.
The decrease of orders has hampered our manufacturing operations in
China. In order to contend with this difficult time, the management is
in the process of restructuring the whole manufacturing operation in
Panyu China. The domestic business in China continues to be fruitful and
we are planning to open up more cities in China for our products. Our
export business is still being affected by the economic turmoil and we
may experience increasing level of bad debts. To strengthen our export
business, we are exploring other non-conventional foreign markets in

Eastern Europe and Central Asia.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
T # KA R A G

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERE®E

Our Wuxi yarn operation, although being affected by the economic
downturn, still recorded profits. Attention is drawn to the fact that
current year was the final year for recognising the profits derived
from the compensation received from the relocation of one of Wuxi
operation’s factories. The coming year continues to be a difficult one for
our Wuxi operation and we expect the result to drop drastically for the
Wauxi Talak Group.

APPRECIATION

| would like, on behalf of the Board and shareholders, to express our
appreciation to the Company’s employees for their efforts and loyal

service to the Company during the past year.

By Order of the Board
Chan Sui Kau

Chairman

Hong Kong, 10th July, 2009
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEBNWEDTN

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 3Ist March, 2009 was
HK$1,626 million compared with HK$1,540 million for the year ended
3Ist March, 2008, and the Group’s profit from ordinary activities after
share of profits less losses of associates and jointly controlled entities
and taxation was HK$72 million compared with last year’s profit of
HK$142 million, a decrease of 49%.

GARMENT BUSINESS

We operate our textiles and garment business under the names of
Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. and Hong Kong Knitters Ltd. Our products
include men’s and women’s shirts, trousers, shorts, polo shirts,
t-shirts, jackets and knitted outerwear. The office in Hong Kong is the
headquarters for our whole group where we concentrate on the role of
garment trading, sourcing and the overall control of our own production
facilities in the PRC as well as our partnership garment factories in the
PRC, Bangladesh, India, Cambodia, Myanmar and Vietnam. We also have
sales offices in China at Panyu, Guangzhou, Fujian and Shanghai which

oversee our domestic sales in the regions.

Our wholly owned production facilities in China are all located in
Panyu Guangzhou. They are Exquisite Knitters (Guangzhou) Ltd.
(“EQK”); Whampoa Garment Mfg. (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (“WGM”)
and Guangzhou Top Yield Garment Ltd. Our setup is a vertical one
from knitting, dyeing and finishing of fabrics to the manufacturing and
wholesaling of garments. Both EQK and WGM are compliant factories
manufacturing mainly high end garments. The business slowdown has
given our manufacturing operation some hard times, and prompted the
management to start reorganizing and consolidating all manpower and
resources of our manufacturing facilities in Panyu. Through stringent
control on expenses, introduction of lean management and other reform
measures, we are certain that our manufacturing business can endure

this hard time and be ready when the economy recovers.

Our small shirt factory - Lavender Garment Ltd. in Bangladesh recorded
a slight profit despite the weak economy. This factory’s main role is to
oversee all the production at our partnership factories in Bangladesh
and at the same time to provide contingent support to these factories

as well as our customers.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
B T # KA R A A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEBNWEDTN

OTHER BUSINESS

Wauxi Talak Investment Co., Ltd. in which we have a 49% shareholding is
our jointly controlled entity that owns several textiles related companies
in Wuxi, China namely: Wuxi Changxin Textile Co., Ltd., Wuxi YGM
Textile Co., Ltd. and Wuxi Yangtzekiang Textile Co., Ltd. (collectively the
“Wuxi Talak Group”). The core business of the Wuxi Talak Group is the
production of medium range to high end yarns. With no exception, the
weak market condition also affected the Talak Group’s profits which had
reduced drastically as compared with last year. As 2008/09 was the final
year for reporting the profit derived from the compensation received
from the relocation of one of the group’s factories, and since we foresee
the coming year will be just as difficult, we expect the results for the

Wauxi Talak Group to drop drastically.

During the period under review, the Group’s operations continued to be

financed by the internal resources and bank borrowings.

As at 3Ist March, 2009, the cash and bank balances of the Group were
approximately HK$ 116,153,000 (2008: HK$96,838,000). As at 3|st March,
2009, the bank borrowings of the Group has short term borrowings of
approximately HK$84,420,000 (2008: HK$78,434,000) and there was no
long term borrowing (2008: Nil). The gearing ratio (calculated by dividing
total bank borrowings by total equity) of the Group was 0.10 (2008:
0.09). As at 3Ist March, 2009, the Group was in compliance with the

financial covenant of its banking facilities.

The Group adopts a prudent policy to hedge the fluctuation of foreign
exchange rates. As most of the Group’s sales, purchases, cash and bank
balances and bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollar,
United States dollar, Euro, Pound Sterling or Renminbi. The Group may
enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge its receivables
and payables denominated in the above foreign currencies against the
exchange rate fluctuation when the exposure is significant. As at 3Ist

March, 2009, the Group has no outstanding foreign exchange contracts.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR L /K A5 B 2 A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE WD

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 3lst March, 2009, the Group had pledged certain assets with
carrying values of HK$53,490,000 (2008: HK$42,184,000) mainly for

security of banking facilities and trade financing granted to the Group.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31st March, 2009, the Group, including its subsidiaries but excluding
its associates and jointly controlled entities, employed approximately of
6,000 employees. Remuneration packages are determined by reference
to employees’ performance and the prevailing salary levels in the market.
In addition, the Group provides year end double pay, provident fund

scheme, medical insurance and training to staff.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
B T # KA R A A

REPORIMOE THEBIRECTORS
ESEHREE

The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited
(the “Company”), and together with its subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities (the “Group”) for the year ended 3Ist March,
2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
garment products and textiles, the provision of processing services and
the rental of properties. The principal activities and other particulars
of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note |7 to the financial

statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Group during the financial year are set out in note 12

to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 3Ist March, 2009 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set

out in the financial statements on pages 27 to |46.

An interim dividend of HKI cent (2008: HK5 cents) per share was
declared and paid on |5th January, 2009. The directors now recommend
the payment of a final dividend of HK9 cents (2008: HK18 cents) per
share in respect of the year ended 3Ist March, 2009.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in

note 30(c) to the financial statements.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company, before
dividends, for the year ended 31st March, 2009 of HK$71,877,000 (2008:
HK$142,240,000) has been transferred to reserves.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of additions to and other movements in fixed assets during the

year are set out in note |3 to the financial statements.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

RERORTORTHE BIRECTORS
ESEHREE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties as at 3|st March, 2009

are set out in note |3 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS

Particulars of bank loans of the Group and the Company as at 3lst

March, 2009 are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

No interest expenses were capitalised by the Group during the year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$664,000
(2008: HK$159,000).

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during

the financial year is as follows :

The largest customer BRREF
Five largest customers in aggregate AVBRAREFEF
The largest supplier BRAMER

Five largest suppliers in aggregate EEVAS PN e

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in

these major customers and suppliers.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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REPORIMOE THEBIRECTORS
ESEHREE

DIRECTORS

The present directors of the Company are listed on page 2.

Pursuant to Article 104 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Messrs.
Chan Sui Kau, Chan Wing Sun Samuel, So Ying Woon Alan and Wong
Lam will retire from the Board by rotation and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of

the Company.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of their
respective independence pursuant to the Listing Rules and the Company
considers that the Independent Non-executive Directors to be

independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who offered themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has entered into
any service contract with the Company or any other member of the
Group which is not determinable by the relevant employer within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules as set out in note 34 to the financial statements, no contract
of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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RERORTCRETHRE BIRECTORS
ESEHREE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS INSHARES . ...  EBZRO8=m ...
(@) As at 3Ist March, 2009, the interests and short positions of the @ RZZEZEAFE=A=1+—H ' E&2QF
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares ZEERBEZHBEATIAARQTG
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation EABE AR (RFE S RBEHRD ([F
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures S0 EXVERZ R E) B0 - HE
Ordinance (the “SFO “)) which were required to be notified to BORESFTHEERBEEZFFHRME
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the XVEPETR8DE ~ LT ARESELT
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the BERXGEEFAZREEINEERA
SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken AREBHERZMERAT ([BXR
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), the Model i zEmRkEs (BEREREZ
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers EXBSGHBREHBREREEEEZ
and which were required to be entered in the register kept by the BERZER) UWEEILABRERS
Company under section 352 of the SFO were as follows: RBIE2UFFEZ2ERM2ERR
ZEWT :

Number of Ordinary Shares of HK$0.50 each
EREEBBSB I 2L ERMEE

Personal Family Corporate

interest interests interests Other interests
Name of Director EEpgE EPN 33 RikRER DA HitfE s
Chan Sui Kau R s BR 6,324,696 3,999,354 5,611,230 (i)
Chan Wing Fui, Peter BRKZE 486,102 1,539,130 - (i) & (i) & (iii)
Chan Wing Kee Bk A 1,761,624 208,356 () & (ii) & (i) & (iv)
Chan Wing To BRAOE 2,934,054 . — (i) & (i) & (iii) & (iv)
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel [ 7k Z2 11,244 - 3,043,080 (i) & (i) & (iii)
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley =t 1,728,816 24,000 - () & (ii) & (iii)
Chan Suk Man 2B 1,535,442 N — (i) & (i) & (iii) & (iv)
So Ying Woon, Alan ERpEIE 12,000 = - -
Leung Hok Lim P EAEE - - - -
Wong Lam EH - - - -
Lin Keping M FE - - - _
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REPORIMOE THEBIRECTORS
ESEHREE

(b)

Notes:

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Save

46,032,240 shares of the Company were held by Chan Family
Investment Corporation Ltd. (which is owned by Messrs Chan Sui
Kau, Chan Wing Fui Peter, Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing To and Chan
Wing Sun Samuel, Madam Chan Suk Ling Shirley and Madam Chan Suk

Man and other members of the Chan Family) and its subsidiaries.

34,595,908 shares of the Company were held by Joycome Limited,
which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan Wing Fui Peter, Chan Wing
Kee, Chan Wing To and Chan Wing Sun Samuel, Madam Chan Suk Ling
Shirley and Madam Chan Suk Man and other members of the Chan

Family.

1,574,480 shares of the Company were held by Hearty Development
Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan Wing Fui Peter,
Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing To, Chan Wing Sun Samuel, Madam Chan
Suk Ling Shirley, Madam Chan Suk Man and other members of the
Chan Family.

2,383,500 shares of the Company were held by Super Team
International Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan Wing
Kee, Chan Wing To, Madam Chan Suk Man and other members of the
Chan family.

as disclosed above, as at 3Ist March, 2009, none of the

Directors or their associates, had, under Division 7 and 8 of Part

XV of the SFO, nor were they taken to or deemed to have under

such

share
assoc
SFO)

provisions of the SFO, any interests or short positions in the
s, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
iated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the

or any interests which are required to be entered into the

register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO

or an

y interests which are required to be notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Trans

actions by Directors of Listed Issuers in the Listing Rules.

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

RERORTCRETHRE BIRECTORS
ESEHREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors are not aware of any person who
was, directly or indirectly, interested or had short position in the shares
or underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or, was directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or
more of the nominal value of the issued share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company or any

options in respect of such capital as at 3Ist March, 2009.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 23rd September, 2004, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) which will remain in force until 22nd
September, 2014. Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme,
the Company may grant options to directors and employees of the
Group and other eligible participants to subscribe for shares in the
Company, provided that the total number of shares in the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company does not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at
the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, which was 14,024,579
shares. On 19th September, 2006, it was approved in the Annual General
Meeting that the maximum number of options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme was increased to 21,036,868 shares, representing

10% of the number of ordinary shares in issue on that day.

No options were granted under the Share Option Scheme during the

year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31st March, 2009.

ANNUAL REPORT 08/09 4 ¥4 #

kR T /KA B

A

BRAXFEEEN R-ZZ2FTIF=A
=+—-B JRESUYFNBEEAMALE
ENEEEARERSHRMEXVEFE2R3
7 BBz AR SR RE T 2R 16 A D B) K B 3R T
BzROSEBEROF 2BERKXR K
ERHRBEATE-—VERTRAQEZRE
BERELREZEFZERITRAS
B EEEEHEE 0% U L2
FEBEZERT S R 2 EMERE -

BREE

R-ZZBZENFAAZ+T=H EARKEMA
BRESE ((BRETE])  BRESE
B—EBEEM BEEZET-NEAA=-+Z=
BEH - RIEBERETE 2GR NAF
AEaAEEEEREERAMEERKSH
EREBRE URBEALARM - HER
BB RS I R A D B E AR A
BRI EEREETER AT
ZAERBROBETESEBRMNBERES
BERARDREBTRA2I0% BDER
%14,024579B B M - R=—FZE R FHh A
THAAZRERBERS L EHEEME
RGBT 2 BIRERIEE21,036,868
BRBEHCRITEIZTZEBREE -

FRAERBEBREF R EETERE -

Wi HEREE RS

EEENE=ZA=+—RALFEERN
AABHETAMBATNLBERE HE
HEEAQEEMETHES o

13



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
B T # KA R A A

REPORIMOE THEBIRECTORS
ESEHREE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of connected transactions under Chapter [4A of the Listing
Rules are set out in note 34 to the financial statements. In the opinion
of the Independent Non-executive Directors, these transactions were

entered into by the Group:
(i) in the ordinary and usual course of its business;

(ii) conducted either on normal commercial terms (which expression
will be applied by reference to transactions of a similar nature
and to be made by similar entities) or where there is no available
comparison, on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the

independent shareholders of the Company are concerned;

(iii) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing the

transactions; and

(iv) in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group, where

applicable.

The auditors of the Company also confirmed that the continuing

connected transactions set out in note 34 of the financial statements:
had been approved by the Board;
2. were in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

3.  had been entered into in accordance with the terms of the

agreements relating to these transactions; and

4. the aggregate consideration received or paid in respect of the
continuing connected transactions during the year ended 3lst
March, 2009 had not exceeded the cap disclosed in the respective

announcement and/or circular.
There are no other connected transactions which are required to be

disclosed in this report in accordance with the requirements of Chapter
I4A of the Listing Rules.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

RERORTORTHE BIRECTORS
ESEHREE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out

in note 27 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

To comply with the revised Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
the Company set up an audit committee (the “Committee”) with
written terms of reference, for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision on the financial reporting process and internal control of
the Group. The Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive

Directors.

FIVEYEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 147 and 148 of the annual

report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this report,
there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s

issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the

Company.

By Order of the Board
Chan Sui Kau

Chairman

Hong Kong, 10th July, 2009
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
B T # KA R A A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERB|E

Pursuant to Appendix 23 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited (the
“Company”) presents this Corporate Governance Report for the year

under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board firmly believes that corporate governance is essential to the
success of the Company and has adopted various measures to ensure its
strict compliance with relevant regulatory requirements, a high level of
transparency in corporate governance and an excellent performance in

operation.

The Company has complied with the Code of Best Practice, as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited throughout the year, except that the Non-executive Directors of
the Company were not appointed for a specific term but are subject to
rotation in annual general meeting of the Company pursuant to Articles

95 and 104 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a Securities Dealing Code regarding
director’s securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules. All Directors have confirmed, upon specific enquiry
by the Company, that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code and its Securities Dealing Code throughout the

year under review.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The major responsibilities of the Board include formulation of strategic
plans, adoption of corporate strategies, assessment of investment
projects, monitoring and controlling the Group’s operating and financial
performance, assessment and management of risk to which the Group is

exposed.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EERERB|E

The Board comprises eight Executive Directors, being Messrs. Chan Sui
Kau, Chan Wing Fui Peter, Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing To, Chan Wing Sun
Samuel, and So Ying Woon Alan and Madam Chan Suk Man and Madam
Chan Suk Ling Shirley, and three Independent Non-Executive Directors,

being Messrs. Leung Hok Lim,Wong Lam and Lin Keping.

The information of directorship is detailed in pages 21 to 24.

The Company has appointed a sufficient number of Independent Non-
executive Directors with suitable professional qualifications, such as
expertise in accounting and financial management, in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of

his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board held four meetings during the year ended 31st March, 2009.

The attendance of the Directors was as follows:

kL ® X AF R A& A
ESERE\SUTES  DHARKR

TE -RKELE REKELE  RKE
Sk RAKREE - BRIEIE &R BB
Y ﬁi&ﬂlﬁ‘?&f“ti UAR=EBHE
BITES 2RARARBRALE - ERLLE
)SZMEE$5‘E$°

ESCENFINE2ERM4E

ARAFERBELETRINKERERHA
HNBYFHTES REYABSEN
EXER PINEHETRYBEENE
EHE - ARRCEERBIFATE
BRELTRUEIBHEEEREABLIMENE
ERR R -

EZERFRETTORER BESZ
HFEREEMT

Meeting attended/Held

Directors BE HEBITERERE
Chan Sui Kau (Chairman) BRImER (£/EF) 4/4
Chan Wing Fui Peter (Vice Chairman) BRKE (BIE/E) 4/4
Chan Wing Kee (Managing Director) BROKHE (EFAAEHE) 4/4
Chan Wing To (Deputy Managing Director) BRKE (BIEFHELE) 4/4
Chan Suk Man G197 3/4
Chan Wing Sun Samuel BoR 7k 22 4/4
Chan Suk Ling Shirley AR 4/4
So Ying Woon Alan B PE1E 44
Leung Hok Lim RER 4/4
Wong Lam - 4/4
Lin Keping Mz 4/4

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The roles of the Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director
of the Company are separated, with a clear division of responsibilities.
The Chairman of the Board is responsible for formulating corporate
strategies and overall business development planning. The Managing
Director’s duty is to oversee the execution of daily business activities.
The division of responsibilities at the board level is to ensure a balance

of power and authority.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERB|E

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
The Audit Committee consists of three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr.Wong Lam and Mr. Lin Keping.
Mr. Leung Hok Lim is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee held two meetings during the year with attendance rate of
100%.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for monitoring the integrity
of the Company’s financial statements, reviewing the Company’s internal
control system and its execution, through the review of the work
undertaken by the internal and external auditors, evaluating financial
information and related disclosure, reviewing connected transactions and
considering the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and

their training programmes and budget.

The Group’s audited financial statements, internal control system and
connected transactions for the year ended 3Ist March, 2009 have been

reviewed by the Audit Committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee consists of two Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chan Wing Fui Peter (chairman of the remuneration
committee) and Mr. Chan Wing Kee, and three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Wong Lam and Mr.
Lin Keping. The Company had formulated written terms of reference for
the Remuneration Committee in accordance with the requirements of

the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies and
in overseeing remuneration packages of the Directors. It takes into
consideration factors such as salaries and compensation packages
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors. It also takes into account whether the emoluments
offered are appropriate to the duties and performance of the respective
individuals concerned and whether such emoluments are competitive

and sufficiently attractive to retain such individuals.

The Remuneration Committee convened one meeting during the year

with an attendance rate of 100%.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EERERB|E

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has not established a Nomination Committee. To maintain
high quality of the Board with a balance of skills and experience, the
Board will identify individuals suitably qualified to become directors
when necessary. In evaluating whether an appointee is suitable to act
as a director, the Board will consider the experience, qualification and
other relevant factors. During the year, there was no change in the

composition of the Board.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
financial statements for each financial period with a view to ensuring
such financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. The
Company’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with all
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently; and that judgments and

estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

The Directors are also responsible for reviewing the adequacy of staffing

of the financial reporting functions.

The reporting responsibilities of KPMG, the Company’s auditors, are
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 25 to 26 of this

Annual Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Total auditors’ remuneration in relation to statutory audit work of the
Group amounted to HK$1,646,000 (2008: HK$1,773,000), of which a
sum of HK$1,496,000 (2008: HK$1,676,000) was paid or payable to the
Group’s principal auditors, KPMG.
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The fees paid to KPMG for services rendered are set out as below :

HREFTRETMEHAAREE ZRBEMX
H2E8RWT :

2009 2008

—ETAF —EENF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Statutory audit SEEER 1,496 1,676
Non-audit services IEEZITE 654 174
Total e 2,150 1,850

The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining an adequate and
sound internal control system and through the Audit Committee and the
internal auditors, conducts reviews on the effectiveness of these systems
at least annually, covering all material controls, financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions. The process used
in reviewing the effectiveness of these internal control systems includes
discussion with management on risk areas identified by management. The
purpose of the Group’s internal control is to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems so that the

Group’s objectives can be achieved.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

There was no in-house internal audit function during the year, but the
Group has outsourced internal audit services to a firm of professional
accountants to review annually specific areas of concern identified by
the management or the Audit Committee. The outsourced internal
auditors undertook an annual review of the effectiveness of the system
of internal control of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2009 so
as to furnish some degree of comfort to the Audit Committee and the
Board on the reliability and integrity of the system and control process.
The results of the internal control review were submitted to the Audit
Committee for consideration. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
results of the internal control review and is satisfied that the existing

system of internal controls is effective and adequate.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
EEREEAER

DIRECTORS

Chan Sui Kau, GBM, GBS, |P

Aged 84, Dr. Chan is the founder of our Group. He established the
Company in 1949 and is the Executive Chairman of the Company as well
as YGM Trading Ltd. Having been a Justice of the Peace since 1983, Dr.
Chan was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star in 2002 and 6 years later in
2008 he was awarded the Grand Bauhinia Medal. Dr. Chan used to serve
as a member of the 8th & 9th term of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Committee until he reached the retirement age. Dr. Chan

is also an Honorary Citizen of Dongguan, Foshan, Guangzhou & Wuxi

(Jiangsu).

Dr. Chan received an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Business
Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2001;
an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Social Sciences from City University
of Hong Kong in 2007 and in the same year an Honorary University
Fellowship from The University of Hong Kong. Then in 2008 Dr. Chan
received another two honorary university conferments: one was an
Honorary University Fellowship from Hong Kong Baptist University and
the other one was an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Social Sciences

from The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology.

Dr. Chan is the former Chairman of Clothing Industry Training Authority
(1986); former Chairman of Textile Council of Hong Kong (1988-1994)
and presently its Honorary Chairman; former President of Federation
of Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers (1977-1988) and currently its
Life Honorary President; Honorary President of Hong Kong Woollen
& Synthetic Knitting Manufacturers’ Association since 1980 and former
member of Textile Advisory Board of Hong Kong (1971-1987) as well as
the Hong Kong Labour Advisory Board (1985-1995).

Chan Wing Fui, Peter, MA

Aged 63, Mr. Chan received a Master’s degree in Administrative Science
from Yale University USA in 1969 and joined the Group in the same year.
He was appointed as Director in 1971, Managing Director in 1980 and
Vice Chairman of the Group and YGM Trading Ltd. in 1987. Mr. Chan has
been actively involved in garment manufacturing and marketing in the Far
East and the USA for over 30 years. He is the son of Dr. Chan Sui Kau
and the brother of Mr. Chan Wing Sun Samuel and Ms. Chan Suk Ling
Shirley.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
EEREEAER

Chan Wing Kee, GBs, OBE, JP

Aged 62, Mr. Chan received a Bachelor’s degree in Industrial Engineering
in 1970. He joined the Group in 1970 as Production Manager and later
became Sales Manager. He was appointed as Director in 1977 and
Managing Director in 1987. He is also a Director of YGM Trading Limited;
independent non-executive director of Times Limited, China Travel
International Investment Hong Kong Limited and China Construction
Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited. Mr. Chan has participated in many
textile negotiations with the USA and Europe for Hong Kong and Macau.
He is a Standing Committee Member of The [0th and Ilth of The
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference; Deputy of the 8th
& 9th National People’s Congress of China; Member of Commission on
Strategic Development of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region; Ex-
member of Economic Council of Macau Special Administrative Region;
Ex-member of the Textile Advisory Board; Ex-Committee Member of the
Preparatory Committee for Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
and Ex-Advisor of Hong Kong Affairs. He is the brother of Mr. Chan
Wing To and Ms. Chan Suk Man.

Chan Wing To, PhD

Aged 58, Mr. Chan joined YGM Singapore in 1978. He was appointed as
Director of the Group in 1983 and YGM Trading Ltd in 1987. He is the
brother of Mr. Chan Wing Kee and Ms. Chan Suk Man.

Chan Suk Man, Msc

Aged 61, Ms. Chan received Master of Science Degrees from the
University of Windsor, Canada in 1973 and Case Western Reserve
University USA in 1975. Madam Chan joined the Group in 1976 and was
appointed as Director in 1993. She is the sister of Mr. Chan Wing Kee
and Mr. Chan Wing To.

Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, Fca

Aged 61, Mr. Chan received a Bachelor’s degree from University of
Manchester, United Kingdom in 1970 and qualified as a Chartered
Accountant in 1973. He was the Company Secretary of the Group
from 1974 to 1988 and has been a Director since 1977. Mr. Chan was
appointed Managing Director of YGM Trading Ltd from 1987 to 2006
and has been appointed Chief Executive Officer since 2006. He has been
appointed Chairman of Hang Ten Group Holdings Ltd since 2003. He is
the son of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the brother of Mr. Chan Wing Fui Peter
and Ms. Chan Suk Ling Shirley.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
EEREEAER

Chan Suk Ling, Shirley

Madam Chan has been the Managing Director of the YGM Trading Group
since 2006. She joined the Group in 1973, was appointed Director of
the Group in 1983 and Deputy Managing Director of YGM Trading Ltd
in 1987. She has extensive experience of management in the garment
retail and wholesale business. Madam Chan is a Member of the Textiles
Advisory Board of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, a Member
of the Hong Kong-France Business Partnership Committee of the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council, a Member of the Executive
Committee of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong,
Chairman of the Hong Kong Brand Development Council, Director of
the Hong Kong Design Centre, a Member of the DesignSmart Initiative
Assessment Panel, a Member of the Board of Directors of the Hong
Kong Tourism Board, a Member of Board of Directors of Ocean Park
Corporation, a Committee Member of the Tianjin Municipal Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and Vice
President of Guangdong Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment. She received a Bachelor’s degree from Trent University, the
United Kingdom in 1973. Madam Chan, aged 58, is the daughter of Dr.
Chan Sui Kau and the sister of Mr. Chan Wing Fui Peter and Mr. Chan
Wing Sun Samuel.

So Ying Woon, Alan

Aged 59, Mr. So received a Bachelor’s degree from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1974. Mr. So joined the Group in 1974 and
was promoted to the position of Sales Manager in 1976. He has been the
General Manager since 1993. Mr. So was appointed as Executive Director
of the Company on 29th November, 2005.

Leung Hok Lim, FCPA(Aust.), CPA(Macau), FCPA(Practising)

Aged 74, Mr. Leung is an independent non-executive Director of the
Company. He is the founding and senior partner of PKF Accountants &
Business Advisers. Mr. Leung obtained his fellowship with Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 1973. He is an independent
non-executive director of YGM Trading Limited and a non-executive
director of Beijing Hong Kong Exchange of Personnel Centre Limited

and a number of listed companies.

Wong Lam, OBE P

Aged 90, Mr. Wong was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in 1995. Mr. Wong is a former member of the Legislative
Council and a former Standing Committee Member of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Dongguan. He is an independent
non-executive director of YGM Trading Limited and Lung Cheong

International Holdings Ltd.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
T # KA R A G

DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
EENREEAER

Lin Keping

Aged 70, Mr. Lin was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company in 2004. Mr. Lin is an engineer, graduated
from Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications in 1963. He is
a member of the Eighth National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultation Conference and an executive member of the
Eighth All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce. He has served in
postal and telecommunication research institutes, the Ministry of Posts
and Telecommunications and other organisations for years, and was an
executive vice president of China Minsheng Bank Corp. Ltd. He is an

independent non-executive director of YGM Trading Limited.

MANAGEMENT

Lau Shing Choy

Aged 61, Mr. Lau received a Bachelor’s degree from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1969, and a Doctor of Philosophy Degree
from Case Western Reserve University, USA in 1978. Mr. Lau joined the
Group in 1978 to develop the China business. He is the Director of
Hong Kong Knitters Ltd. He is the husband of Ms. Chan Suk Man.

Leung Ming Wai, Alan

Aged 51, Mr. Leung is the General Manager of Sales Department and
obtained the diploma in Management Studies at Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and Master Degree in Business Administration at University

of East Asia, Macau. He joined the Company as Sales Manager in 1986.

Chui Wai Ha, Catherine, MBA

Aged 47, Ms. Chui is the General Sales Manager. Ms. Chui joined the
Group in 1994, and has over 20 years' managerial experience in fasion
business. She was awarded Master of Business Administration (Fashion

Business) by the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2004.

Hui Sau Ling

Aged 43, Ms. Hui was appointed as Financial Controller and Company
Secretary of the Company in 2000. Ms. Hui is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She is

responsible for accounting and company secretarial matters.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYZBARE

bl c

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yangtzekiang
Garment Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 27 to |46, which
comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 3lst
March, 2009, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FORTHE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that

are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or

accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
T # KA R A G

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYRZBARE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of

the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st
March, 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

10th July, 2009
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

B I # X F B A &
mEBRER
For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HEZZZNF=ZA=T—RIEFE (L&)
2009 2008
—EThE —EENE
Note $°000 $°000
HiaE Fi S
Turnover =2 3 1,625,529 1,540,276
Cost of sales SHER A (1,323,270) (1,269,541)
Gross profit EF 302,259 270,735
Other revenue Hipug A 4 7,368 6,843
Other net (loss)/income Hit(BB) WS EEE (9,872) 40,324
Selling and distribution expenses HENDHER (128,395) (132,484)
Administrative expenses THEA (91,678) (93,879)
Other operating expenses Hibx&E &R (31,013) (22,988)
Profit from operations RER A 48,669 68,551
Finance costs il & R AN 5(a) (9,238) (10,803)
Share of profits less losses of LB E D R e AREE
associates 1,151 1,523
Share of profits less losses of BiEE%E A RET
jointly controlled entities REE 19 38,193 76,987
Gain on disposal of an associate HERE N ez 4,684 —
Impairment loss on an associate BN BRERE 18 - (4,000)
Net valuation (losses)/gains REYEMLE (B5E)
on investment properties W E5E (7,845) 18,866
Profit before taxation B& R A3 F 5 75,614 151,124
Income tax Fris® 6(a) (3,447) (9,174)
Profit for the year REERF 72,167 141,950
Attributable to: ERER 30(a)
Equity shareholders of the Company AT REZF A 71,877 142,240
Minority interests DEREER 290 (290)
Profit for the year NEERF 72,167 141,950
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
T # KA R A G

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mEEER

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_FEAF=A=T—HILEE (LUETH)

2009 2008
—EEBNEF —EENF
Note $°000 $°000
Mt FT S
Dividends payable to equity ERAEATREZEA
shareholders of the Company TEERE
attributable to the year: 10
Interim dividend declared during REREERZFH
the year ’E 2,104 10,518
Final dividend proposed after the REEHBRERIRE
balance sheet date REBRE 18,933 37,866
21,037 48,384
Earnings per share BREF
Basic and diluted EAXR#EE 1l $0.34 $0.68
The notes on pages 39 to 146 form part of these financial statements. FIEZI46ENHTB AR BERKR 2 — 0

% e
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
kR oL /KA B A A

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
mEEERER

At 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZBEAF=A=+—8 (LET)

2009 2008
—gEhE —sENE
Note $°000 $’000 $°000 $°000
Mzt FrT Fr S ST
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 13(a)
Investment properties REYE 93,028 100,432
Other property, plant and Hib% BER
equipment B 154,006 160,292
Interests in leasehold land HMEREREZE8H
held for own use under FHE i
operating leases 2,103 249,137 2,125 262,849
Construction in progress FEIR 14 609 291
Intangible assets BREE 15 2,874 2,874
Goodwill e 16 - -
Interest in associates =N 18 6,586 12,110
Interest in jointly BERNRER
controlled entities 19 477,224 428,655
Other financial assets HitEmEE 20 5,986 1,453
Dividend receivable from EREsENT/RE
jointly controlled entities 22 28,678 —
Deferred tax assets BEFEHRERE 28(b) 7,765 1,204
778,859 709,436
Current assets RBEE
Inventories =zE 21 147,698 162,114
Trade and other FEUR BR RN R HoAth
receivables i ER 22 175,813 288,557
Tax recoverable o B ER e 28(a) 242 1,008
Pledged deposits KFER 23 9,070 =
Cash and cash equivalents HERINESZEEY 24 116,153 96,838
448,976 548,517
Current liabilities wwes® 0000 | 000 T/ T
Trade and other payables FEASBR TR H A
FEAT TR 25 201,224 288,339
Bank loans IRITER 26 84,420 78,434
Tax payable FESHiE 28(a) 8,805 10,702
294,449 377,475
Net current assets RBEEFE 154,527 171,042
Total assets less EEAER
current liabilities REEE 933,386 880,478
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
T # KA R A G

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
mEEERER

At 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZTBTAF=A=+—8 (L ETH)

2009 2008
—EThE —EEN\F
Note $°000 $’000 $°000 $°000
Kt FT FT S FT
Non-current liabilities kRBERS
Provision for long service EHRIE & &%
payments 29 33,335 24,531
Deferred tax liabilities BEFEHEE 28(b) 15,432 16,997
48,767 41,528
NET ASSETS EEBE 884,619 838,950
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRK#E 30(a)
Share capital AN 105,184 105,184
Reserves 5 778,375 732,996
Total equity attributable FEREER AN B IR RE
to equity shareholders B AEREE
of the Company 883,559 838,180
Minority interests DEBRERER 1,060 770
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 884,619 838,950

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
10th July, 2009.

Chan Sui Kau Chan Wing Kee

Chairman Managing Director

The notes on pages 39 to 146 form part of these financial statements.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

o WK A R A A
N\ =13
NARIEESER
At 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-ZZEZEANE=ZA=+—8 (U BTit)
2009 2008
—zEnE —zB g
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
et FT FT S S
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 13(b)
Investment properties BREYE 104,164 119,114
Other property, plant and Hib% BRER
equipment B 38,441 40,673
142,605 159,787
Intangible assets mMEEE 15 2,384 2,384
Interest in subsidiaries EOP NG iy 17 135,080 133,841
Interest in associates BN R R 18 - 10,436
Interest in jointly controlled EENTRERS
entities 19 230,818 230,818
Other financial assets HipbesmEE 20 5,986 1,453
516,873 538,719
Current assets REEE
Inventories =zE 21 38,846 37,196
Trade and other receivables FEUBR TR & EAth
e 22 207,253 239,265
Cash and cash equivalents HERINESZEEY 24 38,945 41,681
285,044 318,142
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables BRI H A
N EN 25 117,168 161,668
Bank loans IRITER 26 74,669 67,420
Tax payable FESHiE 28(a) 2,701 8,513
194,538 237,601
Net current assets REEEFE 90,506 80,541
Total assets less EEATER
current liabilities REBEE 607,379 619,260
Non-current liabilities FRBEAE
Provision for long service EHRBS%EE
payments 29 4,459 2,084
Deferred tax liabilities EEFFEHER 28(b) 19,091 21,521
23,550 23,605
NET ASSETS EERE 583,829 595,655
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
T # KA R A G

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
NREEEER

At 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-ZBBAF=ZA=+—B B ETH)

2009 2008
—EThE —EENE
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Kt FT FT S S
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRNFE 30(b)
Share capital BR 7 105,184 105,184
Reserves B#iE 478,645 490,471
TOTAL EQUITY A

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

10th July, 2009.

Chan Sui Kau Chan Wing Kee

Chairman Managing Director

The notes on pages 39 to 146 form part of these financial statements.

583,829 595,655
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

B o B K & R A #
M A 32
mEERBER
For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_TTENF=A=+—BILFE (L&)
2009 2008
—E2EENF —EBENF
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
et F Fr T T
Total equity at Ist April AMA—HzER
A %E 838,950 679,477
Net income recognised BEEREZTEAZ
directly in equity: W FEE
Exchange differences on REEBUINE
translation of the financial AR HRERZ
statements of subsidiaries EHERE
outside Hong Kong 30(a) 5,011 20,231
Share of associates’ and EihEE AR R
jointly controlled entities’ BERNREL G
exchange reserve 30(a) 9,129 39,051
Changes in fair value of At E R E
available-for-sale equity FBLELATLEEEH
securities 30(a) (358) -
13,782 59,282
Net profit for the year REERFEEE 30(a) 72,167 141,950
Accumulated foreign currency EETHMEE B ERER
translation difference of HERE N TR
an associate dealt with in REEREBRE
reserves transferred to
the income statement on
disposal 30(a) 310) -
Total recognised income and REECHER
expense for the year WA H 85,639 201,232
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kL | K £

R &

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEEREER

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZNF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOETH)

2009 2008
ZBENF ZEENF
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
et F Fr T o
Attributable to: FERER -
Equity shareholders of the KRB RERFEA
Company 85,349 201,522
Minority interests D REEE 290 (290)
85,639 201,232
Dividends declared or FEAEZEREIR
approved during the year ZIRE 30(a) (39,970) (42,073)
Movements in equity ERAZZMELE
arising from capital ZRERBE
transactions:
— capital injection by - DERRBAR
minority shareholders BA 30(a) - 314
Total equity at 31st March | R=A=+—H

The notes on pages 39 to 146 form part of these financial statements.

884,619

838,950
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

B oW KA R &
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
mERERER
For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HEZZTN=A=+—BIFE (UET)
2009 2008
ZBENF ZEENEF
Note $°000 $°000
Kzt Fr T
Operating activities ReEEY
Profit before taxation RRBE A e A 75,614 151,124
Adjustments for: FEIER ¢
— Share of profits less losses - FE{REE N EEF)
of associates WEE (L,151) (1,523)
— Share of profits less losses of - BEiEEE AR
jointly controlled entities WE B (38,193) (76,987)
— Gain on disposal of an associate - HEBE QARG (4,684) =
— Impairment loss of an associate - BE A RRERE = 4,000
— Net valuation losses/(gains) - REYEGERSE
on investment properties (W z=) F58 7,845 (18,866)
— Interest expenses - AMEXH 5(a) 9,238 10,803
— Amortisation of land lease - HE Tt FREE
premium 5(c) 70 Il
— Depreciation —IE 5(c) 25,354 24,243
— Impairment losses/(reversal of - FEUERTR ~ HAth
impairment losses) on trade, FEUR A R FE W & 3K
other receivables and loans ZREEE,
receivable CREEERRE) 5(c) 3,609 (924)
— Impairment losses on dividends - B E 2R ERE
receivable 5(c) 1,478 =
— Dividend income from unlisted - LETREERZ
equity securities B2 A (415) (403)
— Interest income - FEKA (1,192) (1,456)
— Gain on disposal of fixed assets - HEEEEEKRSE 4 (42) (18,625)
— Loss on interest rate swap - NP EH 2 EE
agreements 4 = 219
— Gain on changes in fair value of - RBNESHDF
forward exchange contracts EEZE 2z 4 - (1,162)
— Impairment loss on available- - AHHERE
for-sale equity securities FHZRERSSE 4 4,044 -
— Foreign exchange loss -ERER 2,641 2,562
Operating profit before changes EEESHBHIREHRRN
in working capital 84,216 73,116
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR L /KA B

A

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

mREReRER

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN=A=+—HLFE LET)

2009 2008
ZBENF ZEENF
Note $°000 $°000
g3 Fr ST
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BERY (&) 14,416 (23,076)
Decrease/(increase) in trade debtors EUWERFUR D~ (1Eh0) 41,771 (5,964)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, e  BERREMER
prepayments and other debtors RERA () 9,478 (6,598)
Decrease in bills receivable FEW =R 20,139 39,108
Decrease in amounts due from FEUR BB A R FIE R 2
related companies 4,333 1,825
Increase in amounts due from FERE & N B FIEE N
jointly controlled entities (1,027) -
Decrease in trade creditors FESBRFUR A (56,324) (7,130)
Decrease in accrued charges and EstE AR HEHAM
other creditors FEFOR A (31,822) (5,067)
Increase/(decrease) in bills payable FENEEEM S GEL) 9,363 (8,112)
Increase in amounts due to related FE{TBEEE A R FIE
companies fily)li 882 3,492
(Decrease)/increase in amounts ENBE AR REE QT
due to associates and jointly IE R L) g m
controlled entities (7,684) 3,538
(Decrease)/increase in amount BT — R R FRIE
due to a shareholder CRi2) /& (1,530) 40
Increase in long service payments RHEIRE £ M 8,332 20,940
Cash generated from operations REXEMBES 94,543 86,112
Tax paid 2AHIE
- Hong Kong profits tax paid - B EBREH (11,090) (5,339)
— Tax (paid)/refunded outside -(Bf) BEEB
Hong Kong LA 1E (1,585) 2,198
Net cash generated from RETEHMEBNRELER
operating activities 81,868 82,971
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR L /XK A5 B A ¥
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
mEEERER
For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HEZTTN=R=+—BLLFE LUET)
2009 2008
ZBENF —ZEENEFE
Note $°000 $°000
Kzt Fr ST
Investing activities BETE
Payments for purchase of fixed assets BERTEEENI (15,067) (21,825)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets HEREEEREBRIE 539 24311
Payments for construction in progress EEIERNR (2,340) (1,373)
Interest received 2 WS 1,192 1,456
Dividend received from associates BB E AR ZRE 1,446 2,965
Dividend received from unlisted SUWE ETREE S
equity securities ZBRE 415 403
Proceeds from disposal of associates FTFEEHEBE QT
in the previous year JiREER = 16,000
New loans to suppliers HIEHEBRER (2,000) (5,000)
Receipt of loans receivable el EWERR 5,168 2,211
Increase in pledged deposits KB F RGN (9,070) -
Net cash (used in)/generated REEH (FTA)
from investing activities FrEMIRE 25 (19,717) 19,148
ANNUAL REPORT 08/09 4 4 #
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
T # KA R A G

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
mERERER

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TTEN=A=+—"HLFE LET)

2009 2008
ZBENF ZEENF
Note $°000 $°000
Kz Fr T
Financing activities mMEEE
Repayment of bank loans BEEITER (572,200) (323,562)
New bank loans HiBEITERR 578,186 286,122
Capital injection by minority DERRHBRARA
shareholders = 314
Interest paid [EEREISE (9,238) (10,803)
Dividend paid 2R R (39,970) (42,073)
Net cash used in financing METETANES
activities T (43,222) (90,002)
Net increase in cash and RERRESEEY
cash equivalents 184 7E 28 18,929 12,117
Cash and cash equivalents at MREOA—BZHER
Ist April ReEEY 96,838 80,055
Effect of foreign exchange SRR HE
rates changes 386 4,666
Cash and cash equivalents at R=A=+—HzZzH%
31st March RELSZEY 24 116,153 96,838
The notes on pages 39 to 146 form part of these financial statements. SE39H E 1465 K MY & 8 A B 75 3} 3k

— 81D °
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR L /K A R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 3R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_TTNFZRAZ+—HILFELETH)

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted

by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2 provides
information of any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods

reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation and measurement

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3lst
March, 2009 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest in associates

and jointly controlled entities.

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is

the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis, except as set out in the

accounting policies below.

08/09 4 JE4E it

(k)

A

FTEEEBE

B
FUBBRRRRAEER BB
B|EER ((HBHBHREER D (U
DEBETMAS (FEETMAE)
Mz EERZ @R E BB ®
HER - FREFEAN(EFBSTE
Al MzR SBARSTRAMNE
BRARAKRAZHEEZGHE HmHE X
BRBRTIFEEBHESXZMAER
RABELHRAUZBRARERE -
UTR/AEERA 2 EEZSTHRM
FEo

BESTMASERME THIRKE
B 2EBMBREER  AREK
BRAABZAGTHBERERS
AR R R o RADIREE A M 58
BRAEERTRBESHHBMER
ZETBREE MR RN ZEHBR
RZEW - BIRHEE2 -

mRRGEEE

BE-ZENFZA=Z+-HLEFE
MEEMBHRE  BEAXTARAEM
BRA(BAIAEE]) RAEER

BEATRAE AR ZES -

FEEWBAR BEQAREGED
ARBEZHBRRFEFEIHEBENE
AZEREECTERERECE
FFE(TTHEEER ) - FE BB E|R U
RABMIIEEEBITEY -

FHBHRRERBELRAEER
BT ISR E RIS -

39



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

53

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iL ® XK W

A

Bt 75 3R R Y =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOET)

(b)

()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation and measurement (continued)

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods

if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates
with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are

discussed in note 35.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently

exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until

the date that control ceases.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR L /K A R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 3R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_TTNFZRAZ+—HILFELETH)

ANNUAL REPORT

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries and minority interests (continued)

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group consolidated transactions, are eliminated in
full in preparing the financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets of
subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by the
Company, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries
and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
Minority interests are presented in the consolidated balance sheet
and consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Minority interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income statement as an
allocation of the total profit or loss for the year between minority

interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority
interests in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess and any further
losses attributable to the minority, are charged against the Group’s
interest except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation to, and is able to, make additional investment to cover
the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the Group
interest is allocated all such profits until the minority’s share of

losses previously absorbed by the Group has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is

stated at cost less impairment losses (see note |(m)).
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
B T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR MR

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—TTENF=A=+—HLFE (LOETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(d) Associates and jointly controlled entities

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its

management, including participation in the financial and operating

policy decisions.

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under a
contractual arrangement between the Group or the Company and
other parties, where the contractual arrangement establishes that

the Group or the Company and one or more of the other parties

share joint control over the economic activity of the entity.

An investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method and is initially recorded at cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the associates’ or the jointly controlled entities’ net assets, unless
it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale). The consolidated income statement
includes the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the associates and jointly controlled entities for the year,
including any impairment of goodwill relating to the investment in

associates and jointly controlled entities recognised for the year

(see note I(e) and I (m)).

When the Group’s share of loss exceeds its interest in the
associate or the jointly controlled entity, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate or the jointly controlled entity. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest in the associate or the jointly controlled entity is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance

form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or the

jointly controlled entity.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR L /KA R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥ HR R Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TTENF=A=+—"HLFE LET)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(d) Associates and jointly controlled entities (continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates and jointly controlled entities are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate
or jointly controlled entity, except where unrealised losses provide

evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case

they are recognised immediately in the income statement.

In the Company’s balance sheet, its investments in associates and

jointly controlled entities are stated at cost less impairment losses

(see note |(m)).

(e) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate or a jointly
controlled entity over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of

the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses (see
note |(m)). Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is
tested annually for impairment. In respect of associates or jointly
controlled entities, the carrying amount of goodwill is included

in the carrying amount of the interest in the associate or jointly

controlled entity.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of a business combination or an investment in an

associate or a jointly controlled entity is recognised immediately in

the income statement.

On disposal of a cash generating unit, an associate or a jointly
controlled entity during the year, any attributable amount of

purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or

loss on disposal.

Goodwill, which arose prior to Ist January, 2001, which had
previously been taken directly to reserves will not be recognised
in the income statement on disposal or impairment of the acquired
business, or under any other circumstances. On disposal of the

acquired business, the related goodwill will be transferred to

retained profits.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
B T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R Y =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOET)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(f) Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in equity

securities other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and

jointly controlled entities, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be

reliably measured are recognised in the balance sheet at cost less

impairment losses (see note |(m)).

Investments in other securities are classified as available-for-sale
securities. At each balance sheet date, the fair value is remeasured

with any resultant gain or loss being recognised directly in equity,

except for impairment losses (see note |(m)).

Investments are recognised/ derecognised on the date the Group

commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

(g) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value.
At each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured. The gain
or loss on remeasurement to fair value is charged immediately to
the income statement, except where the derivatives qualify for cash
flow hedge accounting in which case recognition of any resultant

gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged (see

note |(h)).
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR oL /KA B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RS HR R Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_TTNFZRAZ+—HILFELETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(h) Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of
the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset or liability or a
highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk of
a committed future transaction, the effective portion of any gain or
loss on remeasurement of the derivative financial instrument to fair

value is recognised directly in equity. The ineffective portion of any

gain or loss is recognised immediately in the income statement.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the
associated gain or loss is removed from equity and included in the

initial cost or other carrying amount of the non-financial asset or

liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the associated
gain or loss is removed from equity and recognised in the income
statement in the same period or periods during which the asset

acquired or liability assumed affects the income statement (such as

when interest income or expense is recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the preceding
two policy statements, the associated gain or loss is removed from
equity and recognised in the income statement in the same period

or periods during which the hedged forecast transaction affects the

income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the hedge
relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to
occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains in equity
and is recognised in accordance with the above policy when the
transaction occurs. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected

to take place, the cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised in

equity is recognised immediately in the income statement.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR L /KA B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A

Bt 75 3R R Y =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOET)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(i) Fixed assets

(i)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note I(l)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These

include land held for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or
from the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in the income statement. Rental income from

investment properties is accounted for as described in note

1 (v) iii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital

appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for as

an investment property on a property-by-property basis.

Any such property interest which has been classified as an
investment property is accounted for as if it were held under
a finance lease, and the same accounting policies are applied

to other investment properties leased under finance leases.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
kR L /K A5 B 2 A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 3R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_TTNFZRAZ+—HILFELETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . TESHEEH)
....... (continued): o S8 8 0.0 00 IR I M8 8 8w T e
(i) Fixed assets (continued) (i) BEEE (&)
(i) Other property, plant and equipment (i) BMY* BMERZE
The following items of property, plant and equipment LTEEBNE BMERKXED
are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated BEENRZFTITE RBEE
depreciation and impairment losses (see note |(m)): EREEAGBRYIER (ZHME
I(m)) :
- freehold land; - KRAERELH
—  land held under operating leases and buildings thereon, - REKLEHEEEzLH#
where the fair values of the leasehold interest in the FEREELZEF MA
land and buildings cannot be measured separately at the ALt BEF o HEER
inception of the lease and the building is not clearly held WATFEBEEELINESMH
under an operating lease (see note I(I)(i)); BEIETE UREEBE

BFUTHRELLEHER
B (ZEMEI0)3)

In preparing these financial statements, advantage has REEAPHHRE B
been taken of the provisions set out in paragraph 80A RBEFEEfRZ2LHR
of HKAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment” with the BFFAEFERE 6
effect that land and buildings which have been revalued (% BRERRE ] Z80A
in prior years have not been revalued at the balance B2K B mItRkRLEE R
sheet date. Such properties are stated at their carrying EHEMfM BEYWEXRRER
value less accumulated depreciation and impairment IREENKREFATERR
losses and will not be revalued in future years. EBEEBAR MBELTE
ERRFEMELEM -

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on - GFERBEELHEBEES
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building AnEgEF  mEQATFEER
could be measured separately from the fair value of the EANEEAEYNREEEE
leasehold land at the inception of the lease (see note ZHETHNWAFTEESD
1(1)(i)); and FEtE (Z2BEMEIONG)

il
—  other items of plant and equipment. - HttBERSE®E-
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR L /KA B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A

Bt 75 3R R Y =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOET)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fixed assets (continued)

(i)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the income

statement on the date of retirement or disposal.

Upon disposal of land and buildings which were revalued in
prior years, the attributable revaluation surplus is transferred
from the land and building revaluation reserve to retained

profits.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their

estimated useful lives as follows:

- Freehold land is not depreciated;

— Leasehold land is depreciated on a straight-line basis

over the remaining term of the lease;

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over
the shorter of the unexpired term of the lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 40 years after

the date of completion;

- Plant and machinery between 4 to 10 years;

—  Otbher fixed assets between 3 to 5 years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR T /KA B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥ HR R Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_TTNFZRAZ+—HILFELETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(j) Construction in progress

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note I(m)). Cost comprises direct costs of construction
incurred, including any attributable financing costs, during the
periods of construction and installation. The asset concerned is
transferred to property, plant and equipment when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use

are completed, at which time it commences to be depreciated in

accordance with the Group’s depreciation policy.

(k) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated in the
balance sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is definite) and impairment losses (see note

I (m)). Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands is

recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged

to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the assets’

estimated useful lives.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of
an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in

accordance with the policy for amortisation of intangible assets

with finite lives as set out above.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR L /KA B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A

Bt 75 3R R Y =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOET)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of

transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that

the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets

for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of

payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of

the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the

arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i

Classification of leased assets to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as operating

leases, with the following exceptions:

property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property
is classified as an investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as investment property, is

accounted for as if held under a finance lease (see note

1 (i)(i)); and

land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly
held under an operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the

previous lessee.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 3R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_TTNFZRAZ+—HILFELETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(I) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the
income statement in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in the income statement as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to the income statement in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight line basis over the period of the lease
term except where the property is classified as an investment

property (see note |(i)).

(m) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
receivables

Investments in equity securities (other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities: see
note |(m)(ii)) and other current and non-current receivables
that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified as
available-for-sale securities are reviewed at each balance sheet
date to determine whether there is objective evidence of

impairment.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-SPAF=A=1—BLLFE (LOETH)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other

receivables (continued)

Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data

that comes to the attention of the Group about one or more

of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the

debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an

investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined

and recognised as follows:

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial assets and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset where
the effect of discounting is material. Impairment losses

for equity securities are not reversed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TTNFZRAZ+—HILFE LETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other

receivables (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT

For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of the asset), where
the effect of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where financial assets carried at
amortised cost share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial
assets which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for assets with

credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

For trade and other current receivables carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset

where the effect of discounting is material.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through the
income statement. A reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no impairment

loss been recognised in prior years.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOET)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
receivables (continued)

- For available-for-sale equity securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised directly in equity is
removed from equity and is recognised in the income
statement. The amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in the income statement is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously recognised

in the income statement.

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities are not
reversed through the income statement. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets is recognised

directly in equity.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in the

income statement.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_TTNFZRAZ+—HILFELETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

ANNUAL REPORT

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed

at each balance sheet date to identify indications that the

following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of

goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer

exists or may have decreased.

property, plant and equipment (other than properties

carried at revalued amounts);

pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as being

held under an operating lease;

intangible assets;

investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly

controlled entities; and

goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is

estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its net selling price and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a

cash-generating unit).
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For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOET)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use,

if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not

reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
income statement in the year in which the reversals are

recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

B ¥ HR R Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_TTNFZRAZ+—HILFELETH)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(n)

(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial

year (see notes |(m)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or a
smaller loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to which

the interim period relates.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location

and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the

reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR MR

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOET)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(o) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter are stated at amortised cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note I|(m)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be

immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less

allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

(p) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in the income statement over the period of

the borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable, using

the effective interest method.

(q) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance
with note [(u)(i), trade and other payables are subsequently

stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash and

cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow

statement.
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(q)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

B ¥ HR R Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_TTNFZRAZ+—HILFELETH)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be

material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligations in respect of long service
payments are the amounts of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods, calculated in accordance with the relevant law

in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using binomial lattice or Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total estimated
fair value of the options is spread over the vesting period,

taking into account the probability that the options will vest.

ANNUAL REPORT 08/09 4 ¥4 #

kR T /KA B

A

TESTBER (&)

EBEEF

()

(ii)

JEH 1B 5 75 7 K BE & R B 1k 5
FH7

& FREES -BHFER B
ERABRAFEERREEES
BEMNORS  DEESREHMA
BERBHFENRGT o ELEX
NREERE BEEELR B
BERESZEREAR-

RAERBEE
FEESERIRBESEETFHE
EREEERTEEBEGEE
RAHA ) e 4B 12 2R R 4R (R AR 5 P
BRELZ RIRBF S5

(iii) R

RTREZBRERAFEERE
ARREERS  MEZPZRAE
EETSEEEMN - 2 FEER
ETEMERA-EAKERIHA
hr-FHEE ] BEEEENF
B UETRBRERTFHERRM
Rt - MRBEEANEHBIRM
THRERTZEBEREZER
KERBRERB 2 TREMLER
BREMAFLITVEERFENS
EEREEBHNDE -

59



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

453

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iL ® XK W

A

Bt 75 3R R Y =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

nE

(t)

—ERNF=A=+—B ILFE LOETTA)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)~ Share-based payments (continued)
During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the capital reserve
until either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to
the share premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).

(iv)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the
Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate employment
or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy
by having a detailed formal plan which is without realistic

possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that they relate to items recognised

directly in equity, in which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

(s)

(®t)
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For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TTNFZRAZ+—HILFE LETH)

ANNUAL REPORT

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities
and all deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can
be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can

be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent
that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible

differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets

and liabilities are not discounted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOET)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . TESHEEF)

....... (continued) scor e s s s MM m M mmmn = 088 2 0o e

(t) Income tax (continued) (t) FRiBH (&)
The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each rEESESEEERBERELRSE
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer MEENEFEOHSE MREAXEEES
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the THA RS B 4K EHE R LUK 0
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to HBENHREFNE  ZELEEHEE
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits NEEHESHEESHAR . ERURBE
will be available. XA B EHNESER - BHEARE

HESRE -

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of Aok EMBEIEENAEHRRE
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related TN HERENEEELEESR -

dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements THANELEFMESHERKRAESHES
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not PEHER BT FIEKE o AEMIE
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, EFEREERGEARAARLEHR
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the BEETEEUKREBEFREHEEKE

Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off THEFEBHEE LAFSUTHS

current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following RENBERT 7 1 L2 BIK 85 A 5

additional conditions are met: MELFRBHRAE

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company - REFEHEEMERE  AAF
or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to RAEETERFHEEELE
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or NENERZEENEERZE

& =%

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate - BEFSHEENERE L&
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on ENMEENANER —FHIEHKEIT
either: UTHA-BBRNFAENREER:
- the same taxable entity; or N B—EHEE %

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period - TRNEFREBE LB
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities BB EEREEAETE
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, REELFESHEBERE
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the BERREELFMEHRE
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle ETNKEMWEE &F
simultaneously. HEEBRABHAERE

ENMEEXHFAEHEAE
FEFERZEENEE
ZEfE-

ANNUAL REPORT 08/09 4 Ji 4 #



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR oL ®/ K A B
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For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_TTNFZRAZ+—HILFELETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i

ANNUAL REPORT

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse
the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss
the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt

instrument.

Where the Company or the Group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in the income statement on initial recognition
of any deferred income. Where the guarantee is issued by
the Company in respect of the banking facilities granted
to its subsidiaries, the asset identified is a form of capital
contribution, i.e. an addition to the cost of the investment in

the subsidiary.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in the income statement over the term
of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued.
In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with note
I (u)(iii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Company or the Group
under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Company or the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in trade and other payables in respect
of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less

accumulated amortisation.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOET)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Contingent liabilities acquired in business combinations

Contingent liabilities acquired as part of a business
combination are initially recognised at fair value, provided
the fair value can be reliably measured. After their initial
recognition at fair value, such contingent liabilities are
recognised at the higher of the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation, where appropriate, and
the amount that would be determined in accordance with
note |(u)(iii). Contingent liabilities acquired in a business
combination that cannot be reliably fair valued are disclosed

in accordance with note | (u)(iii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure

expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the

probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_TTNFZRAZ+—HILFELETH)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured

reliably, revenue is recognised in the income statement as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which are taken to be the point in time
when the customer has accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade

discounts.

Processing services income
Processing services income is recognised when the relevant

services are rendered.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in the income statement in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which

they are earned.

Dividends
- Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is

established.

- Dividend income from listed investments is recognised

when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-SPAF=A=1—BLLFE (LOETH)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

TESTBER (&)

(v) Revenue recognition (continued) (v) WA®RR (&)

(v) Interest income v) FIEWKA
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective FEWMAREEERERERFE
interest method. AR o

(vi) Government grants (i) BITHHEZE
Government grants are recognised in the balance sheet EUNEERERAEEKEWE
initially as deferred income when there is reasonable BFEB &I & BITZ MR
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will HIEGE EEURETEEAR
comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that RGBT HBEZRBIELERA °
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised AR REAEEC EERINE
as revenue in the income statement on a systematic basis B 2ERYXEENTEERS
in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred. hEBRERERBWRA - BARE
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset AAEEEERANEE > BliZ
are recognised in the income statement as revenue on a ZEENESTTAERE RS
systematic basis over the useful life of the asset. EERREIBBA -

(vii) Management fee income and commission income (i) EEEWRARBHEKRA
Management fee income and commission income are EEBRARMBESWAEREHE
recognised when the relevant services are rendered. BEREEHERAEWA -

(w) Translation of foreign currencies (w) SNEBRE

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the income

statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated at foreign exchange rates ruling

at the dates the fair value was determined.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items,
including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign operations
acquired on or after Ist January, 2005, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
directly in a separate component of equity. Goodwill arising on
consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before Ist January,
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the

date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences recognised in equity which relate to that
foreign operation is included in the calculation of the profit or loss

on disposal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income statement in the
period in which they are incurred, except to the extent that they
are capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or

complete.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOET)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(y) Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is

considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial and
operating policy decisions, or has joint control over the

group;
(ii) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in

which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel of the
Group, or a close family member of such an individual, or
is an entity under the control, joint control or significant

influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (i)
or is an entity under the control, joint control or significant

influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the
benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that is a

related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
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(v) ZATIEG)FTEAEHRKER
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(vi) BRHUBANTFAEESELEE
HENERNESHBERERN
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥ HR R Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TTENF=A=+—"HLFE LET)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(z) Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that
is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to

risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting system,
the Group has chosen business segment information as the primary
reporting format and geographical segment information as the

secondary reporting format for the purposes of these financial

statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment. For example,
segment assets may include inventories, trade receivables and
fixed assets. Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are
determined before intra-group balances and intragroup transactions
are eliminated as part of the consolidation process, except to the
extent that such intra-group balances and transactions are between
Group enterprises within a single segment. Inter-segment pricing is

based on similar terms as those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the

period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and intangible) that

are expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate assets,

interest-bearing loans, borrowings, tax balances, corporate and

financing expenses.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
B T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 75 3 2% Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOET)
2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued the following new Interpretation and an
amendment to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current

accounting period of the Group and the Company:

= HK(IFRIC) 12, Service concession arrangements

- HK(IFRIC) 14, HKAS 19 — The limit on a defined benefit asset,

minimum funding requirements and their interaction

- Amendment to HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement, and HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures -

Reclassification of financial assets

These HKFRS developments have had no material impact on the
Group’s financial statements as either they are consistent with
accounting policies already adopted by the Group or they were not

relevant to the Group’s and the Company’s operations.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that

is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see note 36).

EREREEH

EREHMASEEMUATELAER
REASTHHBERERZHITRER
ERMBREER BT
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# - REELHERAHEHEF

- BI(EBEFEADFEN £
TR #EZRTE  RIERI(F
BUBHERER)E7S  £MT
R KE - 2HEEZEND
#

HEHRERET 2B BHBREE
B S ANEE 2 B HRBAEM
EARE RAZRFEURFEERA
ZEFBRE - AZRFEAERE
B2 X BEBR -

AEBEWERMNEMESNSFTHR
EAREMMEFERNNZRE (SHEME
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥ HR R Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TTENF=A=+—"HLFE LET)

3. TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and
sale of garments and textiles, the provision of processing services
and the rental of properties. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial

statements.

kR L /K A5 B 2 A

KRHsEm RENTREMWEA
E-MBRARAZEREXZBRHEMENR
HERMBRRMERI7TE -

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied to CEBAMELAEF (BEBELNT)

customers, fee income from processing services and rental income ERNEEERE  MIREWARE
from external customers (including associates) and is analysed as S TDHUOT :

follows:

2009 2008

—sThE  —2INF

$’000 $°000

Fr Fr

Manufacture and sale of garments BUENEERIK 1,585,676 1,513,490

Manufacture and sale of textiles HENHEEHEMm 15,592 6,412

Processing services T RRFE U A 16,675 11,675

Property rental YRS 7,586 8,699

1,625,529 1,540,276
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bR S

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-—BBAF=A=T—AILEE (CUETH)

4, HMWAR(BE) WRaFHE

2009 2008
ZBENEF ZEENEF
$°000 $°000
Fr T
Other revenue HAp A
Commission income ALl A 3,754 2,501
Dividend income from unlisted FEmRERSZ
equity securities BREWA 415 403
Interest income FE WA 1,192 1,456
Management fee income BFEEHAWA 804 804
Sundry income Hibug A 1,203 1,679
7,368 6,843
Other net (loss)/income Htt (&8
WA R
Gain on disposal of quota HEBEE NG 637 10,165
Net exchange (loss)/gain ER (&8
L Epes (13,422) 5,763
Scrap income EERIULA 3,040 2,541
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEBTEEE RS 42 18,625
Net claims income BEEFWA 422 1,814
Loss on interest rate swap FREHREHN 2 EE
agreements - (219)
Gain on changes in fair value of RHIMNEEHNATER
forward exchange contracts Sz IS = 1,162
Impairment loss on available- At HERESE S
for-sale equity securities 2R EEE (4,044) -
Recovery of loan receivable WERUEEE#ME 2
written off in prior years EWEF 3,336 -
Others Hit 117 473
(9,872) 40,324
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR oL /KA B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-PPAF=A=1—BLLFE (LOETH)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

5. . BRBEIER

A

BREADER E MR (GHA) ¢

2009 2008
“BELF —EENF
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
(a) Finance costs: (a) BERA :
Interest on bank loans wholly BARAEFEREBH
repayable within five years BEZRITER
(including bank charges) FE
(BERITER) 9,238 10,803
No interest expenses were FRAREELRE
capitalised by the Group BEREFEZS -
during the year.
(b) Staff costs:* (b) BIRA : #
Salaries, wages and other e IERHEAM
benefits B 229,500 217,827
Contributions to defined Bl E M FGR KRGS
contribution retirement e
schemes 4,187 3,738
Provision for long service RERBE S ERE
payments 8,430 20,940
242,117 242,505
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 3R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-—BBAF=A=T—AILEE (CUETH)

BB AR (A

2009 2008
ZBENEF ZEENEF
$°000 $°000
Fr 5T
(c) Other items: (c) HAty1E R :
Cost of inventories” FE R A" 1,323,270 1,269,541
Amortisation of land lease FHE + b FROE 6
premium® 70 Il
Depreciation® wE 25,354 24,243
Impairment losses/(reversal of FEUBRER ~ HAth
impairment losses) on trade, FEUW R & R U
other receivables and BERZHE
loans receivable &8 OhE
EEEE) 3,609 (924)
Impairment losses on dividends R B 2 RE
receivable EE 1,478 =
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEE 1,646 1,773
Operating lease charges: REHEER !
minimum lease payments” RIEEE T3z
— property rentals —YE2HES 6,899 6,454
Rentals receivable from REYERKES
investment properties less WEES
direct outgoings of 2,081,0007T
$2,081,000 (2008: $1,803,000) (ZBBNE:
1,803,0007% ) (5,505) (6,896)

# Cost of inventories includes $126,164,000 (2008: $113,606,000)
relating to staff costs, depreciation expenses, amortisation of land
lease premium and operating lease charges, which amount is also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above

for each of these types of expenses.

FERABFEETIRA - TEEH -
HET R ERERCEHEER
BRAFIE 126,164,000 (ZZEZEN
1 113,606,000T) c EEHELIE
RAELX PRI TZ2EEEEE
FiazEP -

74 ANNUAL REPORT 08/09 4 if 4F #



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

53

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-—BBAF=A=T—AILEE (LUETH)

6. INCOMETAX INTHE CONSOLIDATED INCOME

STATEMENT

Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents:

iL /KX 5 W

A

REBERATNAEHR

(@ HREBBRPARHAEHRS:

2009 2008
ZBENF ZEENEF
$°000 $°000
Fr ST
Current tax - REHIE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBAEH
Provision for the year ARERIEEE 12,179 8,728
(Over)/under-provision in UEFEE (BERE)
respect of prior years BETE (331) 310
11,848 9,038
Current tax - REHE -
Tax outside Hong Kong EBEIN
Provision for the year REREE R 1,269 1,472
Over-provision in respect of DIFFEEEERE
prior years (1,573) 1
(304) 1,472
Deferred tax EEFTEB
Origination and reversal ERERNELEREE
of temporary differences (8,097) (1,216)
Effect on deferred tax HEAERETOA—AB
balances at Ist April IEIEFTIS B4t ek
resulting from a decrease a2
in tax rate = (120)
(8,097) (1,336)
3,447 9,174
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
B T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

76

B AE SRR MR

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOETH)
6. INCOMETAX INTHE CONSOLIDATED INCOME

@

Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents:
(continued)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2009 is calculated
at 16.5% (2008: 17.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for

the year.

In February 2008, the Hong Kong Government announced
a decrease in the Profits Tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5%
applicable to the Group’s operations in Hong Kong as from
the year ended 3Ist March, 2009. This decrease is taken into
account in the preparation of the Company’s 2008 financial

statements in respect of deferred tax balances.

On |6th March, 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth
National People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income
Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “New Tax
Law”) which was effective from Ist January, 2008. Further,
on 6th December, 2007, the State Council released the
Implementation Rules to the Corporate Income Tax Law (the
“Implementation Rules”). Effective from Ist January, 2008, the
New Tax Law and Implementation Rules enact the standard
tax rate of 25% for the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities, which had applicable tax rate
of 27% or 33%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC,
certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries is eligible for the
exemption from income tax for two years starting from
the first profitable year of operations and thereafter, a 50
percent relief from their applicable tax rate for the following
three years (the “tax holiday”). Pursuant to the notice on the
Implementation Rules of the Grandfather Relief under the
New Tax Law, Guofa (2007) No.39 issued on 26th December,
2007 by the State Council, these PRC subsidiaries continue
to enjoy the tax holiday under the grandfathering provision of

the New Tax Law with the standard tax rate of 25%.

6. MEBERATHNAEH (&
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kL ® K A5 W

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 35 3R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-—BBAF=A=T—AILEE (LUETH)
6. INCOMETAX INTHE CONSOLIDATED INCOME

@

ANNUAL REPORT

Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents:
(continued)

Under the New Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is also levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the PRC.
However, only the dividends attributable to the profits of
the financial period starting from Ist January, 2008 is subject
to the withholding tax. A lower withholding tax rate may
be applied if there is a tax treaty arrangement between the
PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investor. Pursuant to
a double tax arrangement between the PRC and Hong Kong,
the Group is subject to a withholding tax at the rate of 5%
for any dividend payments from the Group’s PRC subsidiaries.
The Group has not provided for withholding tax in respect of
the future dividend income from its PRC subsidiaries as these
PRC subsidiaries either sustained accumulated losses after |st

January, 2008 or the effect of withholding tax is immaterial.

Taxation for other overseas subsidiaries is charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant

countries.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
B T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 35 ¥R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-PPAF=A=1—BLLFE (LOETH)

6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 6. HMEBBEXRMTAWAEH (&)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at (b) FIBHXEMEHEFZBEAB
RETERHER

applicable tax rates:

2009 2008
—B2NE —EINEF
$°000 $°000
FT Fr
Profit before taxation R %t Az F 75,614 151,124
Notional tax on profit before BRIBRIEAABEERES
taxation, calculated at the mAREAREE
rates applicable to profits RRBLADEFIM B &
in the countries concerned | 9,752 26,230
Tax effect of non-deductible RAMHE X R E
expenses B2 4,975 4,238
Tax effect of non-taxable BAEFTBRANTIE
revenue 2E (9,536) (15,729)
Tax effect of unused tax losses REATERERY
not recognised AR BB BIE
28 912 288
Tax effect of tax losses not REEFRER
previously recognised but RERIIKIEE
utilised in the current year ZHEsE (565) (1,193)
Tax concession enjoyed by TEERFEINHIE
certain entities =2E (187) (5,090)
Under-provision in respect of DEFERETR
prior years (1,904) 310
Effect on deferred tax balance BMEFERHTA—H
at Ist April resulting from EIEFTISBiseh 2
a decrease in tax rate b2 - 120
Actual tax expense BRHESR 3,447 9,174
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
kR oL ®/ K A5 B A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 35 3R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-BPAE=A=1—BLLFE (LOETH)

71...DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, . . ... L. EZZM: ...
Directors’ remuneration, disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the BIEEBLATGEHAEIIEZEEM
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: BERB2EESHMEMT :
Salaries,
allowances Retirement 2009
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme —EENE
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
E = 4
Name of director EEpE 0k REAMEF BETAL  BRAEEN &
$000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Executive directors YiTES
Mr. Chan Sui Kau REHREE 30 1,463 1,200 - 2,693
Mr. Chan Wing Fui Peter RAELE 30 2,730 1,025 60 3,845
Mr. Chan Wing Kee Bk 4 30 2,730 1,550 60 4,370
Mr. Chan Wing To RKEEE 30 960 1,000 - 1,990
Ms. Chan Suk Man AR L+ 30 1,664 1,000 60 2,754
Mr. Chan Wing Sun Samuel Foi ok % S A 30 =) = = 30
Ms. Chan Suk Ling Shirley BERR L 30 - - - 30
Mr. So Ying Woon Alan BEELE 30 1,355 900 60 2,345

Independent non-executive | BIFHTES

directors
Mr. Leung Hok Lim REESLE 160 - - - 160
Mr.Wong Lam IFE4E 60 - - - 60
Mr. Lin Keping MREEE 60 - - - 60

520 10,902 6,675 240 18,337
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
B T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R SRR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-PPAF=A=1—BLLFE (LOETH)

1.. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) . ... 1T. . ESMe ()
Salaries,
allowances Retirement 2008
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme —EENFE
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
ET =]
Name of director Espng 2k REfER BETAL  BRAGHHLER Ch
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
F SR Fr Fr Fr
Executive directors HTES

Mr. Chan Sui Kau REREE 30 1,463 1,200 - 2,693
Mr. Chan Wing Fui Peter RKELE 30 2,964 1,025 60 4,079
Mr. Chan Wing Kee R EE 30 2,730 1,550 60 4370
Mr. Chan Wing To RKEEE 30 480 1,000 = 1,510
Ms. Chan Suk Man R xt 30 1,664 1,000 60 2,754
Mr. Chan Wing Sun Samuel Foi ok % S 4 30 = = = 30
Ms. Chan Suk Ling Shirley BRERR L 30 = = = 30
Mr. So Ying Woon Alan BEELE 30 1,303 750 58 2,141

Independent non-executive BIEHTES

directors
Mr. Leung Hok Lim REERLE 160 - - - 160
Mr.Wong Lam IFE4E 60 - - - 60
Mr. Lin Keping MREEE 60 - - - 60
520 10,604 6,525 238 17,887
8. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS BEEMEAL

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for both years
presented are all directors of the Company and details of their

emoluments are set out in note 7 above.

9. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company includes a profit of $28,502,000 (2008: $35,615,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the

Company.

80

AEERMEBRcAUREME
ALTHRERAES  KEWE 2D
R ECBRET

RATRREEHEEAEMSLER

ARABBREFEABRGREENEE
—E B AKRD R MR K AHER
28,502,0007T (= ZF )\ : 35,615,000
JT) e

ANNUAL REPORT 08/09 4 Ji 4 #



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
kR oL ®/ K A5 B A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 35 3R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—TTNFZRAZ+—HILFELETH)
10. DIVIDENDS 10. B2

(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (@) EREXATREEEALREERE
Company attributable to the year

2009 2008
ZBENF ZEENF
$°000 $°000
Fr JETE
Interim dividend declared and paid BEREXAFFHRE
of $0.01 (2008: $0.05) per share Fh%0.017T
(ZZZNEF
&RR0.057T) 2,104 10,518
Final dividend proposed after the REEHRRRIRE
balance sheet date of $0.09 RER B8 8%0.097T
(2008: $0.18) per share —EENF:
$R0.187T) 18,933 37,866
21,037 48,384
The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has not NEEREARED RN ABKRE S X
been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date. EEEAEIAEE -

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (b) EREXATRBREFEABRA LB
Company attributable to the previous financial year, EE IR ETEEZERINHRE
approved and paid during the year

2009 2008

—EEhEF —EENEFE

$’000 $°000

Fr Fr
Final dividend in respect of the BRE—BBEE -
previous financial year, approved WARFEERZER
and paid during the year of TRREREER

$0.18 (2008: $0.15) per share 0.1I8T(ZZZENF !
HFHR0.155T) 37,866 31,555
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 35 3R 2% Y o

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_TTENF=A=+—HLEFE (LOETH)

. EARNINGS PER SHARE

. EBEREF

(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BERELEF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit BREABADBEERENADT
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of $71,877,000 IREEFE AEAEEF71,877,0007T (=
(2008: $142,240,000) and 210,369,000 ordinary shares (2008: T Z)\F : 142,240,000T) RFERE
210,369,000 shares) in issue throughout the year. 1T LB IR R 19210,369,0008% (=&
=)\ 1210,369,0008%) 5t & o
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BEREBEER
The diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings BE_ZTZNFEFR-_ZFZENF=ZH
per share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in =S+—HLEFE AQARLEAFE
existence during the years ended 31st March, 2009 and 2008. EHHEREIZEER  MEERER
BRESREBERTER -
12, SEGMENTREPORTING 2, ABBE
Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s PHERTIRAEB XK RLED
business and geographical segments. Business segment information B2 EBoEERNERERERE

is chosen as the primary reporting format because it is more
relevant to the Group’s internal financial reporting. Geographical
segment information has been chosen as the secondary reporting

format.

Business segments

The Group comprises the following main business segments:

- Manufacture and sale of garments: the manufacture, process,

E2HAX  ZEREXBIBERRY]
BAREEZABPBHRS - HEDH
ERAEERERREZH/AAN -

E3 g
REBBETHEEZXEL 2 BARK

- RERHEHERK: HE -MI-

retail and wholesale of garments ZERBBRK
- Manufacture and sale of textiles: the manufacture and = BUENEESE D BlE R
wholesale of textiles 4 48

—  Others: rental of properties and other investments
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
kR oL /KA B A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 35 3R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TTNFZRAZ+—HILFE LETH)

Manufacture and
sale of textiles Others

Manufacture and

Unallocated Consolidated

sale of garments

HERHERR  WEREELAR Hh ADE ErE
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ZETNE CBINE Z2BAF ZRB\E ZRRNE ZET\E ZBIAE CBEN\E Z2BAE ZERN\E
$7000 $000 $000 $000 $2000 $000 $2000 $000 $000 $000
Fr 7r Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr fr

Revenue from external RENEEN

customers WA 1602351 155,065 15592 6412 1586 8699 - - 1,625,529 1540276
Other revenue HitA 4,957 4,181 - - 804 804 1,607 1,858 71,368 6,843
Total revenue g8t 1,607,308 1,529,346 15,592 6,412 8,390 9,503 1,607 1,858 1,632,897 1,547,119
Segment result AYEEED 41,964 58,493 696 691 4,402 7,509 1,607 1,858 48,669 68,551
Finance costs BERAR (9,238)  (10,803)
Share of profits less losses | FEfSEE AR

of associates and RENTER

joindly controlled entides | B (36) (87 712340 Bysdl  (BL63B) (4344 - S o34 78500
Gain on disposal of HEBENT

an associate g 4,684 =
Impairment loss on an —FHELNT

associate HERE = (4,000)
Net valuation (losses)/gains | REWEfEE

on investment properties|  (&18) /&

FH (7,845) 18,866

Income tax FrgH (3447)  (9174)
Profit for the year KEERR 72,167 141,950
Depreciation and EERTER

amortisation for the year b 24,747 23,835 25 2 652 498 - - 25424 24,354
Segment assets PBEE 602,063 679,597 1,000 [,180 123,273 130,166 - - 726336 810943
Interest in associates and REENFR

jointly controlled entities RENER - 5853 477,224 428,655 6,586 6,257 - - 483810 440,765
Unallocated assets AOBEE 17,689 6,245
Total assets BEB%S 1,227,835 1,257,953
Segment liabilities AHER 234,464 314841 50 24 45 46 = - 234559 314911
Unallocated liabilities *PEER 108,657 104,092
Total liabilities afEnm 343216 419,003
Capital expenditure incurred | FERERF R

during the year 17,407 23,198 - - - - - - 17,407 23,198
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R Y =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOET)

Geographical segments

The Group’s business is managed on a worldwide basis, but

participates in four principal economic environments.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments,

segment revenue is based on the geographical location of

customers. Segment assets and capital expenditure are based on

the geographical location of th

e assets.

L DRERE (A

i & 2 2B
AEBRNEBERMTRE M &2
ANEFrENESEREEE o

ESRBESBELR  HBRAZ
NEFHF GBI EEE - HHE
7 AR B 32 B U 7 0 R M 2B 3
HHEE

Revenue from

external customers

REMIAEFHBA
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
$°000 $°000
FT Fr
— Europe — &M
United Kingdom HE 386,335 352,301
France sk 41,460 44,474
Other European countries HMEONE xR 501,208 492,160
— North America — 4 =M 207,535 239,989
— Asia Pacific —DmARME 449,135 376,083
— Others —Hftbh 39,856 35,269
1,625,529 1,540,276
Capital expenditure
Segment assets incurred during the year
PHEE FERNERBX
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEEAEFE ZEENF ZETREFE ZZENF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
FrT Fr Fr Fr
— Hong Kong BB 373,226 413357 2,821 3,628
—The PRC — 348,971 395,972 14,193 19,352
— South East Asia -y 4,139 1,614 393 218
726,336 810,943 17,407 23,198
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

08/09 4F JE 4% it

B o B K & R A F
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BF 765 S 2k B =
For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TTENF=A=+—BILFE (L&)
EmlAr e VS e e S e R 8 8 V) s (FE S 0 S e
(a) The Group (@) T£EH
Interests in
leasehold
land held
Land and for own
buildings Other use under
held for  Plant and fixed Investment  operating
own use machinery assets  Sub-total properties leases Total
BEER BiERE
i BE Hif HEZEA
kEgF  R#E EREE Pt REME  BELH ait
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Cost or valuation: RAHME
At st April, 2007 R-ZE+EMA-A 112,471 200,748 104,558 417,777 86,677 8,333 512,787
Exchange adjustments ERAZ 5,290 14,889 3,655 23,834 1,649 240 25723
Transfer from construction in HREEHEIR
progress (note |4) (fz 14) - 424 667 1,091 - 38 1,129
Additions BE - 10,483 11,342 21,825 - - 21,825
Disposals HE (8,637) (21,195) (6,544) (36,376) - (5,629) (42,005)
Reclassification from investment HRENEEHNTEE
properties to land and buildings THRET 6,760 3 L 6,760 (6,760) = =
Surplus on revaluation BfERH - - - - 18,866 - 18,866
At 31st March, 2008 R=BENE=ZA=t-H 115,884 205349 113,678 434911 100,432 2,982 538,325
Representing: &
Cost BA 115,884 205,349 113,678 434911 - 2,982 437,893
Valuation - 2008 it - ZEEN\E - - - - 100,432 - 100,432
115,884 205,349 113,678 434911 100,432 2,982 538,325
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 3R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-—BBAF=A=T—AILEE (CUETH)

(a) The Group (continued)

13. BlE&E (&)

) A58 (&)

Interests in
leasehold
land held
Land and for own
buildings Other use under
held for  Plant and fixed Investment  operating
own use machinery assets  Sub-total properties leases Total
BEER BiERE
i BE Hif HEZEA
kEgF  R#E EREE Pt REME BELH Ch
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Cost or valuation: RAHME
At Ist April, 2008 R=ZENEMA-A 115,884 205,349 113,678 434911 100,432 2,982 538,325
Exchange adjustments ERRZE 1,352 3,969 1,092 6,413 4| 67 6,921
Transfer from construction in HREEHEIR
progress (note 14) (fiE14) - [,860 168 2,028 - - 2,028
Additions ®E - 5,765 9,302 15,067 - - 15,067
Disposals HE - (16,772) (25,850) (42,622) - - (42,622)
Deficit on revaluation EfiEE = = - - (7,845) - (7,845)
At 31st March, 2009 R-EBhE=F=1-H 117,236 200,171 98,390 415,797 93,028 3,049 511,874
Representing: &
Cost B 117,236 200,171 98,390 415,797 - 3,049 418,846
Valuation - 2009 il - ZBENF = - - - 9308 - 9308
117,236 200,171 98,390 415,797 93,028 3,049 511,874
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
kR oL /K A5 B A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 35 3R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-PPAF=A=1—BLLFE (LOETH)

13. FIXED ASSETS (continued) . ... 13 BEBEM) ..o
(a) The Group (continued) (@) X%5H (&)
Interests in
leasehold
land held
Land and for own
buildings Other use under
held for  Plant and fixed Investment  operating
own use machinery assets  Sub-total properties leases Total
BEER BiERE
Bt BE Hif HEZEA

ERT?  REE BREE M ORENE  ERL® At
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr 7z Fr 7 7z 77 77

Accumulated amortisation R BERNE
and depreciation:

At Ist April, 2007 R-EELENA-A 44212 145,125 81,833 271,170 - 1,378 272,548
Exchange adjustments ERHE 20 (oY 0 Wores 0% I8 5 757 B 0 4] e N 1489
Charge for the year REERHRNE 3,685 10,958 9,600 24243 = Il 24,354
Written back on disposals HEBEE (7267)  (19432)  (8916) (35615 . (704 (36319)
At 31t March, 2008 R=BBNE=A=+-R 42,840 146505 85274 274619 = 857 275,476
At st April, 2008 RZEENENA-H 42,840 146,505 85,274 274,619 - 857 275,476
Exchange adjustments ERAR 584 2,608 751 3,943 = 19 3,962
Charge for the year REERHERNE 4109 8,383 12,862 25,354 = 70 25,424
Written back on disposals HEBRE S (16305 (25820)  (42,125) . - @)
At 31st March, 2009 RZZEAE=A=+-H 47,533 141,191 73,067 261,791 - 946 262,737
Net book value: REFE:

At 31st March, 2009 R-BENE=F=1-H 69,703 58,980 25323 154,006 93,028 2,103 249,137
At 31st March, 2008 RZEENF=A=1-H 73,044 58,844 28,404 160,292 100,432 2,125 262,849
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
B T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 35 ¥R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-BBAF=A=T—AILEE COETH)

13. FIXED ASSETS (continued) . . ... 13. BEBEM) ..
(b) The Company (b) &AT
Land and
buildings Other
held for  Plant and fixed Investment
own use machinery assets  Sub-total properties Total

BEARG  EE M
tHEEY  RME EETRE 0 RESE A
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
7 & Fx  F&  FA i

Cost or valuation: BAZfE

At lst April, 2007 R-ZZZ+ENA-H 39,258 15,237 49,058 103,553 101,094 204,647

Additions BE = = 3277 3277 = 3277

Disposals Ye& (229) (4,258) (1,846) (6,333) = (6,333)

Reclassification from investment MRENELEHDIER

properties to land and buildings T REF 6,760 - - 6,760 (6,760) -

Surplus on revaluation BB - - - - 24,780 24,780

At 31st March, 2008 R-ZZEENF=RA=1-H 45,789 10,979 50,489 107,257 119,114 226,371

Representing: Rk

Cost B 45,789 10,979 50,489 107,257 = 107,257

Valuation - 2008 fta - —EEN\E - d = = 119,114 19,114
45,789 10,979 50,489 107,257 119,114 226,371

Cost or valuation: BAZfE

At lst April, 2008 RZEZNEMA-A 45,789 10,979 50,489 107,257 119,114 226,371

Additions BE = = 1,684 1,684 = 1,684

Disposals HeE = (10,833) (25,145) (35,978) = (35,978)

Deficit on revaluation BfhEE - - - - (14,950) (14,950)

At 31st March, 2009 RZZENE=A=+-H 45,789 146 27,028 72,963 104,164 177,127

Representing: R&:

Cost A 45,789 146 27,028 72,963 - 72,963

Valuation - 2009 it - Z2EhE - - - - 104,164 104,164
45,789 146 27,028 72,963 104,164 177,127
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

B iIL XK F BR A ¥
e
For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_TTNF=A=+—BLFE L&)
13. FIXED ASSETS (continued) . . .. .. ... . 13. BEEE (M) .o,
(b) The Company (continued) (b) ARRQTF (4F)
Land and
buildings Other
held for ~ Plant and fixed Investment
own use machinery assets  Sub-total properties Total
BEBRAK BE Hitr
THREF k#®E EEEE Mt BREWE L
$000 $000 $000 $000 $°000 $000
7 fr T Fr Fr Fr
Accumulated amortisation RIBHRNE
and depreciation:
At Ist April, 2007 RZEZtEMA-A 11,180 14,213 42,670 68,063 - 68,063
Charge for the year REEHERITE 1,136 = 1,910 3,046 = 3,046
Weritten back on disposals HERE D — (3,234) (1,291) (4,525) = (4,525)
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZENF=A=1+-H 12,316 10,979 43,289 66,584 = 66,584
At Ist April, 2008 R-ZZEENFMA-H 12,316 10,979 43,289 66,584 - 66,584
Charge for the year KEEHERITE 1,767 = 2,149 3916 = 3916
Weritten back on disposals HERER - (10,833) (25,145) (35,978) - (35,978)
At 31st March, 2009 R-ZEhF=A=+—-H 14,083 146 20,293 34,522 2 34,522
Net book value: BEFE:
At 31st March, 2009 RZEBNEFZA=1-H 31,706 - 6,735 38,44 104,164 142,605
At 31st March, 2008 RZBZEN\E=ZA=1-H 33,473 - 7,200 40,673 119,114 159,787
All investment properties of the Group were revalued at 3lst (c) RZEEANF=ZA=+—-—HAKEN

March, 2009 on an open market value basis calculated by reference

to net rental income allowing for reversionary income potential.

The valuations were carried out by independent firms of surveyors,

Knight Frank Petty Limited and RHL Appraisal Limited, who have

among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors

with recent experience in the location and category of the

properties being valued.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
B T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R 2% Y =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOETH)

13. FIXED ASSETS (continued) . . . . . . . ... . 3% Il e
(d) The analysis of net book value of properties is as follows: d) YMEZEREFEINOT :
The Group The Company
AEME ¥ NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—BEAEFE —BEN\F =RRhF —FEN\F
$°000 $°000 $’000 $°000
Fr =T For =%
Medium term leases RHAFE A
— in Hong Kong -&B 70,716 80,229 98,015 112,934
— outside Hong Kong - HEUINMMEE 56,263 55,719 = =
Freehold KA EERE
— outside Hong Kong - EHEUIME 37,855 39,653 37,855 39,653
164,834 175,601 135,870 152,587
Representing: RE :
Land and buildings T REST 69,703 73,044 31,706 33,473
Investment properties BREYE 93,028 100,432 104,164 119,114
162,731 173,476 135,870 152,587
Interests in leasehold BEREHEY
land held for own use EABEELH
under operating leases 2,103 2,125 - =
164,834 175,601 135,870 152,587
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

Bt R SRR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—TTNFZRAZ+—HILFELETH)

(e)

()

ANNUAL REPORT 08/09

The Group and the Company lease out investment properties
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of one to three years, with an option to renew the lease after that
date at which time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases

includes contingent rentals.

The gross carrying amounts of investment properties of the
Group and the Company held for use in operating leases were
$93,028,000 (2008: $100,432,000) and $104,164,000 (2008:
$119,114,000) respectively.

All properties held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property are classified as

investment properties.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

kR oL ®# KA B

n

13. BlEEE (&)

(e)

®

REBRAQRAUKEHESH B
HEREME -HESHIH-—KRE—
FE=F -WERABREETNRER
B ERFAANKRRITENGE -
mEHESNETEEREEASE -

AEEREAARFELEHENR
EYEBIKREESD B 293,028,000
T (=ZZZ/)\HF :100,432,0007T)
104,164,000t (Z 2T NEF :
119,114,0007T) °

FENERENEERUACERES
BNMELBRREME -

AEBERBTIUHRNEEHEER
BREUNSEEENRBLHOT :

2009 2008

—22AE  —BT)\F

$°000 $°000

Fr T

Within | year —FR 6,509 7,435
After | year but within 5 years —FRERLFR - 861
6,509 8,296

A B AR )
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR T /KA B

A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bR e

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-BPAF=A=1—BLLFE (LOETH)

14. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS . ... 1R L A L
The Group
TEE
2009 2008
—B2NE 2 2%
$°000 $°000
Fr e
At st April REA—H 291 42
Exchange adjustments & AR 6 5
Additions e 2,340 1,373
Transfer to fixed assets EREETEERE
(note 13(a)) (B1EE13(a)) (2,028) (1,129)
At 31st March R=A=+-—H 609 291
N A O S s e TS SRR NN SN | I5. MEBE
The Group The Company
BN AT
Club Club
debentures debentures
2% 2%
$000 $000
Fr Fr
At Cost: B
At Ist April, 2007, 31st March, 2008, R-EZT+FEMNA—AR-
I'st April, 2008 and 3 st March, 2009 —EEN\FE=A=+-H"
ZZZ\EWA-AK
“EERFZAZT-H 2,874 2,384
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16.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kL /K A R & F
BA RS AR MY AL
For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_ZTZNF=HA=+—RHILFE (L&)
....... celenydlmamnanaa s e a8 884 Lo 49 R EE 39N S
The Group
REME
Positive goodwill
RS
$°000
Fr
Costs: A
At Ist April, 2007, 31st March, 2008 R-ZEE+ENA—H ZBEENF=ZA=1+—8,
I'st April, 2008 and 31st March, 2009 “EER\FONA-HRZ=EEAF=ZRA=1t—H 2,177
Accumulated amortisation and Tt BERBERE
impairment losses:
At Ist April, 2007, 31st March, 2008, R-ZEE+ENA—H ZZBEENF=ZA=1+—81,
I'st April, 2008 and 31st March, 2009 “EENFENB-BR=ZFEFNF=ZA=+—H 2,177
Carrying amount: RESE:
At Ist April, 2007, 31st March, 2008, NR-ZEE+FENA—H ZBEENF=ZA=1+—81,
Ist April, 2008 and 3 Ist March, 2009 —EENFNR—RAR=_ZEENANFE=A=1+—H a

. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

17. B A RER

The Company

NN

2009 2008

—EZhEF —ZEENF

$°000 $000

Fr FrT

Unlisted investments, at cost FLEMRE  BEAE 32,245 32,245
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NG E ] 109,335 108,096
141,580 140,341
Less: Impairment loss W ORERE (6,500) (6,500)
135,080 133,841

Balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and not

expected to be repayable within one year from the balance sheet

date.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
B T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 2k Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOET)
17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17. B AR ERE (A)

94

The particulars of subsidiaries which principally affected the results,

assets or liabilities of the Group are as follows. The class of shares

held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Place of
incorporation/

establishment

Issued and
paid up share

capital/registered

HAKEXRE BEIRBEREEAY
B2IEMBRARZHRUOT - KRS
BEBI  IEREZRHAERR -

Percentage of

equity held by

the

the

Company and operation capital Group Company Principal activity
B CRITRAR RAERTED L

ARETE RGE Y RA EMES AEW  AAF TR

Whampoa Textile Limited Hong Kong HK$25,000,000 100 100 Investment holding

EHWIHBERLE £ REER

Hong Kong Khnitters Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 = Garment

BEBHEERAR 5E manufacturing and

investment holding

RAELER:

REER

Easeley Knitwear Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 = Garment

RSB RR AR A 7 58 manufacturing

RIREE

Exquisite Knitters (Guangzhou) The PRC/ HK$75,600,000 100 —  Knitting and dyeing

Limited wholly foreign of fabrics and

SHSE (BEM) BRAF owned enterprise manufacturing

hE, of garments

EMBELRE TREE BN

RRRRE

Whampoa Garment The PRC/ HK$17,800,000 100 - Garment

Manufacturing (Guangzhou) wholly foreign manufacturing

Co., Ltd. owned enterprise BAEE
BERIRREMNEBRAR e,/
BESNBERE

Guangzhou Top Yield Garment The PRC/ HK$6,000,000 100 - Garment

Limited wholly foreign manufacturing
BMNEERXERDF owned enterprise B
HhE/
BESNBERE
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR oL /KA B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 3R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-BBAF=A=T—AILEE (LUETH)

A

17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) .. .. | 7. B ARE= (/).
Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation/ paid up share equity held by
establishment capital/registered the the
Company and operation capital Group Company Principal activity
it g s BRITRHR FERTEDL
NEER RBE RAE,/ERER iy e | AN TEXK
Lavender Garment Limited Bangladesh Taka35,511,050 67 - Garment
EyIEDS manufacturing
AR EIE
Vestis Limited United Kingdom GBP2 100 100 Garment wholesaling
e BRAR#E 3%
18. INTEREST INASSOCIATES i 18, BMERARERE ...
The Group The Company
AEH ZA/N|
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EBAE ZETNEFE ZEBBAF ZETN\F
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr WE Fr Fr
Unlisted shares, at cost FEEHIRAR - R = - = 22,881
Share of net assets ELREEZEE 6,586 16,110 - -
6,586 16,110 - 22,881
Less: impairment loss B OREEE - (4,000) _ (12,445)
6,586 12,110 - 10,436
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
B T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R Y =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOET)

The particulars of associates, all of which are unlisted corporate
entities, which principally affected the results or assets of the

Group are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

establishment

18, B NE R (H)

HAKREXEREEREATEZE
ERENR (MAERELRAHGAEL
MEARE) 2HBUT:

Percentage of ownership
interest held by
the the

Company and operation Group Company Principal activity
B )2 AV BERETBEDL
NREHRE AR i B REME NN TEEK
Qinghai Changchun Carbon Co., Ltd. The PRC/ 25 = Production and
EREREREZEARAA Sino-foreign distribution of carbon
equity joint venture used in aluminium
HElFHNEE production
Redz mAREEMRD
£ E - HERRK
Yangtzekiang Industries Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 49 49 Garment
(Disposed of during the year ended BARFLE manufacturing
31st March, 2009) R B E
(RBE-ZFAF=A=1+—H
I FEREE)
Summary financial information on associates BERNBAMBERSE
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Profit
BE =R i L'ON gl
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
For For For For For
2009 —2ENF
100 per cent BOZ—H8H 77,263 50,918 26,345 168,402 5,434
Group’s effective REBEBER
interest g 19,316 12,730 6,586 47,102 1,151
2008 —BENF
100 per cent BoZ—H 118,002 71,738 46,264 182,314 8,232
Group’s effective REEER
interest & 34,523 18,413 16,110 53,879 1,523
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR T /KA B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥ HR R Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_TTNFZRAZ+—HILFELETH)

On 28th November, 2008, the Group entered into an equity

exchange agreement with Travelite Holdings Limited (“Travelite”) to

dispose of the Group’s entire equity interest of 49% in Yangtzekiang

Industries Sdn. Bhd., for an aggregate consideration of Malaysian
Ringgit (“RM”) 3,845,000 (equivalent to HK$8,253,000). Travelite

is a listed company in Singapore, and it settled the consideration

by issuance of 4,239,970 ordinary shares at an issue price of

Singapore Dollars (“SGD”) 0.38 (based on the agreed exchange
rate of RM|1.00 to SGDO0.419), representing 4.8% of the enlarged

share capital of Travelite. A gain on disposal of associate amounted

to $4,684,000 has been recognised in the income statement during

the year ended 3Ist March, 2009. The investment in Travelite is

classified as available-for-sale equity securities on the Group’s and

the Company’s balance sheets as at 31st March, 2009 (note 20).

A

18, BMERRAIRES (M) ...
R=-ZZBENF+-A=+NEB:
7 £ [@ B Travelite Holdings Limited

(I Travelite 1) 3T RER @ =
H & B & 2 B)Yangtzekiang Industries
Sdn. Bhd.Z & ZB49%HE 25 F Travelite
#81% 18 53,845,00055 R 74 55 T (%
748,253,000 JT) © Travelite® — &
REME Emz G WEB BT
4239970 EBR - BRETEAR
038 MK T 2 R ER KRB
(RETTERISERAE T H04195
g T 2 BESE) » 1HE RTravelite
MR ARE 24 8% - BE=-Z
ZNF=ZA=+—BHLEE HEH
& /N 7 UK 54,684,000T B B K
BR-RZBEBAF=ZA=+—-BXK
EEREAQARAZEEEGBRA R
Travelite2 BEEC WO BAAHEEE
BRAER FH (HEE20)

19. INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 19. B QR ER

....... ENTATIES S [l bt toh 8 8 5. 5 3 1L B I

The Group The Company

rEE NN

2009 2008 2009 2008
“BEAF —TT\F —BEAF —TIN\F
$°000 $°000 $7000 $000
Fr F FT T
Unlisted shares, at cost FELETRHD B - - 230,818 230,818
Share of net assets EiEEEFE 477,224 428,655 = L
477,224 428,655 230,818 230,818
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
A

kR L /KA B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bR e

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-PPAF=A=1—BLLFE (LOETH)
19. INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

Details of the Group’s interest in jointly controlled entities are as

follows:
Place of Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ interest held by
establishment the the
Company and operation Group Company Principal activity
SRS BFERFED
NREHE R B REE AAF TEEK
Wouxi Talak Investment Co., Ltd. The PRC/ 49 49 Investment holding
BERBBEFRAT Sino-foreign REZER
equity joint venture
hERIHEE
Rz
Taizhou Changxin Textile The PRC/ 49 = Manufacturing of
(Xinghua) Co., Ltd.* Sino-foreign textile products
FMRIA B (E(L)BRQF]* equity joint venture HmeE
hERIHEE
RedzE
Allied Textiles Limited* The PRC/ 49 - Manufacturing of
s R A AR R B> Sino-foreign garments and textiles
equity joint venture BRIRR A BmEE
hERIHEE
Rehz
Wauxi Changxin Real Estate Co., Ltd.* The PRC/ 49 —  Property development
BmERNBEEBRLF Sino-foreign and investment
equity joint venture MEBRRRIRE
hERIEE
Rehz
Wouxi Changxin Textile Co., Ltd.* The PRC/ 49 — Manufacturing of yarns
BBERIMHBERA T Sino-foreign and fabrics
equity joint venture Wk RS

FEHHNEE

s A
Pl =St 3
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR oL /KA B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RS HR R Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-BBAF=A=T—AILEE (LUETH)
19. INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

Place of
incorporation/

establishment

Percentage of ownership
interest held by
the the

A

Company and operation Group Company Principal activity
SRR BFERFED

NREHRE AR i B REM ENNG| TEEK
Wuxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd.* The PRC/ 49 = Manufacture and
BmERIBEHBERD A" Sino-foreign sale of textiles
equity joint venture HERHEE
FERAEE Hm

Redzk
Wauxi Yangtzekiang Textile Co., Ltd.* The PRC/ 49 — Manufacture and
BGE I IRBEHEBRA R Sino-foreign sale of textiles
equity joint venture HERHEE
hERIEE Hm

Rz
Dongtai NAA Textiles Co., Ltd.* The PRC/ 49 = Manufacturing of
RAEFBRHHBRD A Sino-foreign garments and textiles

equity joint venture
FEHHEE

LD
g

*  Wholly owned subsidiaries of Wuxi Talak Investment Co., Ltd.

* BERBREARARZZEHEEWELR
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
B T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 3R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—TTENF=A=+—HLFE (LOETH)

19. INTEREST IN jOINTLY CONTROLLED

Summary financial information on the jointly controlled

entities — Group’s effective interest:

EELATNBEREE - AEEER
b

2009 2008

—EEhF —BERNE

$°000 $°000

FrT Fr

Non-current assets FREEE 708,475 569,998
Current assets REBEE 280,692 446,359
Current liabilities TEAaE (396,980) (443,325)
Non-current liabilities ERBERE (114,963) (144,377)
Net assets EEFE 477,224 428,655
Income WA 471,724 685,717
Expenses T (433,531) (608,730)
Profit for the year INFEERF 38,193 76,987
The Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entity REBEER-_SEAER-_SZEN

as at 3|st March, 2009 and 2008 include an amount of $12,118,000
which represents the unrealised losses on disposal of certain
associates and subsidiaries to Wuxi Talak Investment Co., Ltd. by
the Group during the year ended 31st March, 2006. Such unrealised
losses have been accounted for to the extent that they have been

retained within the Group.

F=ZA=+-HZEEQRAFEER
FE—%12,118,0007T 2 7K 5 » %A HE
BREBE-ZETAF=A=1+—H01
FERAAEEHESE THEQARRK
BRAATESGRBEREBRAGZAR
BHEBE ZEREBRBBROREAE
BRE 2D HRAK-

ANNUAL REPORT 08/09 4 Ji 4 #



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR oL ®/ K A B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥ HR R Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_TTNFZRAZ+—HILFELETH)
19. INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

During the year ended 3Ist March, 2008, the Group’s 49% owned
jointly controlled entity, Wuxi Talak Investment Co., Ltd., and
two of its wholly owned subsidiaries, namely Wuxi Changxin
Textile Co., Ltd. and Wuxi Changxin Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(collectively the “Wuxi Talak Group”) recognised compensation
income of RMB412,000,000 (equivalent to HK$452,826,000)
for vacating certain plots of land occupied by the Wuxi Talak
Group. The Wuxi Talak Group also recognised impairment losses
on buildings, and plant and machinery situated on the land of
approximately RMB183,000,000 (equivalent to HK$202,910,000).
The compensation income, impairment losses recognised during
the year ended 3Ist March, 2008, and other losses and relocation
expenses incurred as a result of vacating the land occupied by
the Wuxi Group, contributed approximately RMB133,000,000
(equivalent to HK$147,470,000) to the net profit of the Wuxi Talak

Group.

The Wuxi Talak Group received compensation in cash of
RMB424,000,000 (equivalent to HK$470,131,000) during the year
ended 3Ist March, 2008, of which RMB412,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$456,825,000) was recognised as income in its income
statement for the year ended 3Ist March, 2008 as it has fulfilled
the required obligations as set out in the compensation agreement.
The remaining RMB12,000,000 (equivalent to HK$13,306,000)
and the last instalment of RMB88,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$97,574,000) were received during the year ended 3Ist March,
2009. Compensation income of RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$113,340,000) was recognised as income by Wuxi Talak Group
during the year ended 31st March, 2009, as Wuxi Talak Group has

fulfilled the obligations set out in the compensation agreement.

ANNUAL REPORT 08/09 4 ¥4 #

A

 E_EENEF=A=+—HILHE
SEZEEEI2ETAREZ
EN0RE - BERBIREFGRAA
REMEZEMBAR  EREHER
HOGBERAAREGRFEXLEETR
REI (BB EGREEE ) BIE —%
S5 H AR ¥412,000,000T 2 HES
(18 5 74 78 #5452,826,0007T) » FH LA %=
ERGRBEBMLBE IR E L
EHEREBESETCEIAERI B L
BEY BEERRBZREEE &
A AR #183,000,0007T (HHZE R B8
202,910,0007T) cBE_ZEZENF=
B=+—HLEFE FIREIANEES
WAHBRRESE REZEEHR
BHEBGELMBENEMERR
EEER ERESRESEEFAE
# A R #133,000,0007T (FHZE R B8
147,470,0007C) °

o> i B
+

BE-_ZZT/N\F=ZBA=1+—B1L*HF
E BHEREEENURESH XKW
B2 WA AK%424,000,0007T (1
LR B %470,131,000T) - HREE
THESHIPHNER ZEXRESF
A R #412,000,000T (FHER B
456,825,0007T) ERFBRABER A
WA 82T ARK#I12,000,0005T (48
£RB¥13,306,0000T) RE&EE—H
B8 A R %88,000,000 ((HE R B
97,574,0007T) 2 REERBE-ZZ
hE=ZA=Z=+—-—BLEEFEERKE-
BEOHRBEECETHEHREES
PRI 2ET BEBRAARY
100,000,0007T (#8155 A B ¥ 113,340,000
TERBE-ZEEANF=ZA=+—
BLFERHESRESERI AR
A °
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
B T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR MI T

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE_ZTTNF=ZA=+—RHLFE (L ETH)

20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

20, EttemEE

The Group and the Company

AEBRAERF
2009 2008
—EBENF —EENE
$°000 $’000
Fr e
Available-for-sale equity securities: I ERERES
— Unlisted, at cost —3kLtm 855 895
— Listed outside Hong Kong, - BB LT
at market value BmE 4,409 558
5,264 1,453
Loans receivable ERER 722 =
5,986 1,453
The Group and the Company
AEERAERF
2009 2008
—EEAF —EENE
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Market value of listed securities EFHRAFBESZHE 4,409 558
Fair value of individually impaired BB E 2 Tt H &
available-for-sale equity securities REESZAFEE 4,209 =

As at 31st March, 2009, the Group’s and the Company’s available-
for-sale equity securities were individually determined to be
impaired on the basis of a material decline in their fair value below
cost and adverse changes in the market in which these investees
operated which indicated that the cost of the Group’s and the

Company’s investments in them may not be recovered.

Impairment loss on these investments were recognised in the

income statement in accordance with the policy set out in note

(m)(i).

REZBZEANFZAZ+-HLEE
R AEEHER IHEEZRER
FREFLHEE ERELAFEEAK
BERKARERENTHHERF
BE FUAKEERALANZRE
MR AR SEEZ Y E o

B 1 5 R 1EL AR 4B AR BB X1 (m) ()
PR IBR R PR -
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
kR L /K A5 B 2 A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 3R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_TTNFZRAZ+—HILFELETH)

At 31Ist March, 2009, the loans receivable were repayable as follows:

CEMEREE (F)

R-ZEBEENFE=ZA=+—H EKE
RZBREWNT :

The Group The Company
REME ZA/N|

2009 2008 2009 2008

—EEAE —ZTTN\F —FBRE —TINF

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

Fr AT Fr Fr

Within | year (note 22) —F R (Kat22) 821 4711 821 544
After | year but —FREMFER

within 2 years 667 = 667 =
After 2 years but MEEEREFA

within 5 years 55 = 55 "

722 = 722 Lo

1,543 4,711 1,543 544

As at 3Ist March, 2009, the loans receivable represent the carrying
amount of i) loan receivable from suppliers of the Group amounting
to $1,389,000 (2008: $4,168,000); and ii) the loan receivable from
Yangtzekiang S.A. (“YSA”) amounting to $154,000 (2008: $154,000).

The loan receivable from a supplier as at 31st March, 2009
amounting to $1,389,000 is interest-bearing at 6.5% per annum on
the principal outstanding. The loan is repayable in 36 monthly equal

instalments with the final instalment matures in April 201 1.

The loan receivable from another supplier as at 31st March, 2008
amounting to $4,168,000 was interest-bearing at 7.75% per annum
on the principal outstanding, the entire amount has been settled
during the year ended 3Ist March, 2009.

The loan receivable from YSA is unsecured and interest-free, which

represents the written down amount of the loan receivable as at

the balance sheet date.
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RZZEFEARE=A=+—-8B  EWK
EXREERE /WWMEBAMRAASE
B 2 FE W & 571,389,000 (=ZZ2Z N
F : 4,168,0007T) ; & ii)Yangtzekiang
S.A. (T YSA L) Fr X =z F& I & X 154,000
Tt (ZZZJUF 1 154,0007T) °

R-ZZBBEAF=ZA=1+—H—RHE
BT R 2 W E FR 42 %8 1,389,000.T A
FRE65% sTEFIE - ERFED B36
HEZ TR-_ZE——FNAARE
—HifEE -

NR-ZBENF=ZB=1+—-HB 2 —x1it
FETS BT R 2 FE U & 5% 48 %E4,168,0007T
LEFIZF775% stEFE  EREZE
—EENEFE=ZA=+-BLEERZ
HEE-

YSA FiR 2 EWERBREEH 2
HEREE  REERRAHRE -
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR T /KA K

A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 75 3 2% Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOET)

The loans receivable as at 31st March, 2008, also included a

consideration receivable from the disposal of subsidiary during the
year ended 3Ist March, 2004 amounting to $389,000. The gross
amount of the consideration receivable was $4,709,000, of which
$4,320,000 was written off during the year ended 31st March, 2008.
The remaining amount of $389,000 has been received during the

year ended 3Ist March, 2009.

. INVENTORIES

(b)

Inventories in the balance sheet comprises:

20, HtsREE (&)

R-ZBEENFE=A=+—H EKE
REBER=-ZEZNFE=A=+—H1t
FERELENBARZREMRE
W 5%389,000t - EW 2 R BHREH
4,709,0007T * 5% 7K H14,320,0007T 2 A
BE-ZZN\E=A=+—HLEE
A R URL © T ER5E389,000 T REE =
EENF=ZA=+—HIEFERAKE -

(a) FEREEREREBRE:

The Group The Company
REE /N
2009 2008 2009 2008
“BBAE —BEN\F —BBAFE —FENE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
F F Iz F I FIT
Raw materials R A8 34,593 38,771 1,773 2,928
Work in progress TG 77,360 104,085 33,780 31,979
Finished goods BURR M 35,745 19,258 3,293 2,289
147,698 162,114 38,846 37,196
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as (b) FEHEIEZHIMOT :
an expense is as follows:
The Group
REME
2009 2008
—EBAE  —TENF
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Carrying amount of FEHEREE
inventories sold 1,317,986 1,270,989
Write down of inventories FE MU 6,575 2,456
Reversal of write-down FE MR B =
of inventories (1,291) (3,904)
1,323,270 1,269,541

The reversal of write-down of inventories is mainly due to

subsequent sales value of garment exceeding its previously written

down value.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR T /KA B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥ HR R Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_TTNFZRAZ+—HILFELETH)
22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

A

22. MW IR H 1t B WK

The Group The Company
REH ZA/N|
2009 2008 2009 2008
—2BAF —ZTT\F —BEAF —TIN\F
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr 7 Fr Fr
Non-current FEFRED
Dividend receivable from ElWEEQAARE
a jointly controlled
entity 28,678 = - .
Current E
Trade debtors FE W BR X 105,137 146,908 36,135 50,905
Bills receivable EWEE 54,659 74,798 42,404 54,726
Less: allowances for B RIREREME
doubtful debts (5,933) (2,324) (201) (381)
153,863 219,382 78,338 105,250
Loans receivables FEUS & 3% (Bitat20)
(note 20) 821 4,711 821 544
Deposits, prepayments TR EERR
and other debtors H {th fE X 16,434 25,912 5,721 6,403
Amounts due from FE W Bt 1B 2 B FR IR
subsidiaries - = 122,210 127,008
Amounts due from FEUN B X B R IE
related companies 2,119 6,452 163 60
Amounts due from jointly EBWEE NRRIE
controlled entities 1,027 — - =
Dividends receivable from W E N E R
associates and jointly EELATARE
controlled entities 1,549 30,938 - -
Derivative financial TESMIA
instruments - 1,162 - -
21,950 69,175 128,915 134,015
175,813 288,557 207,253 239,265
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
B T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 3R R Y =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOET)

As at 3Ist March, 2009, bills receivable of the Group and the
Company amounting to $44,420,000 (2008: $42,184,000) and
$34,669,000 (2008: $34,920,000) have been pledged to secure bank
loans of $44,420,000 (2008: $42,184,000) and $34,669,000 (2008:

$34,920,000) respectively (note 26).

All of the Group’s and the Company’s trade and other receivables
are expected to be recovered or recognised as an expense within
one year, except for the dividend receivable from the jointly

controlled entity of the Group amounting to $28,678,000 (2008:

Nil).

As at 31st March, 2008, due to restriction of financial convenants
on distribution of dividends by Wuxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi
YGM Textile”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group’s jointly
controlled entity, dividend declared by Wuxi YGM Textile in 2005
amounting to $28,046,000 can only be paid to the Group by Wuxi
YGM Textile when the related bank loans mature in 2009. During
the year ended 31st March, 2009, the bank loans drawn down by
Wuxi YGM Textile had been repaid and thus the restriction on
dividend payments has vanished. However, based on the discussion
with the management of Wuxi YGM Textile, the directors do not
expect the dividend receivable from Wuxi YGM Textile will be
received within one year. Accordingly, the dividend receivable of

$28,678,000 is classified as an non-current asset as at 3|st March,

2009.

All other amounts due from subsidiaries, related companies,

associates and jointly controlled entities are unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

R-BZEAF=A=+—H0 X&E
E & 7N A 7] #544,420,0007T (ZEEN
F 1 42,184,0007T) K% 34,669,0007T (=
ZTF)\F : 34,920,000T) 2 FER E &
2 BIE B K $944,420,000T (ZZEEN
fF : 42,184,0007T) K 34,669,0007T (=
ZF)\E 1 34,920,0007T) (Ht5E26) =
IRITERIER

KREWBLXAEEBSERARARE
28,678,000 (ZZZ )\ F : #|&) /b -
REBRADFMEEKERR K H At
BRI EAR - FAKERERA
B o

RZEZENE=ZA=+—8  K&H
CEENTEZERENBLAR - &
BRIGEHHERAR (EHRT
REGHE ) EARRESRZETHKRZ
YR R-ZEZRESRKRESHE
28,046,000t X HR —ZEZNEEH
BIRTEEIREA TR - R=F
ZNF=ZA=+—HEER BHE
IREERHEERTEENIRE HE
B REIMAWRELMELHEK
BEML REESSFRIBEHE
Wit ESEHESEIBEHE
MERREFTER-—FrkE B
I RZZBZAF=ZA=+—HBEK
i 528,678,000t H D A I RBE
= o

HitFrBERUHWE AR  BEQXAR
BELATARBRRBER  TFF
B UFERBANRBEE -
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
kR oL /K A5 B A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-PPAF=A=1—BLLFE (LOETH)

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) = 22. BWRARHMBUK (&) .
(a) Ageing analysis (a) RERIM
Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors and bills REEBBELERERRR M ER
receivable (net of allowance for doubtful debts) with the following FABLUTIRE DT BRI R FE
ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date: WEE (ENKRRBRERB) ¢
The Group The Company
rEE AN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—RRNAE ZETN\E —BBAF ZZ2IN\F
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
FT Tz FrT ST
Current S~ 380 5 126,748 150,629 69,758 81,289
Less than 61 days BH el H
past due 22,985 56,137 7,869 21,413
61 — 90 days past due BEHl61 £90H 2,056 4,240 81 781
More than 90 days BIHI90R WL £
past due 2,074 8,376 630 1,767
Amounts past due BB EE 27,115 68,753 8,580 23,961
Trade debtors and FEWEREREEREE
bills receivable 153,863 219,382 78,338 105,250
Trade debtors and bills receivable are due between 30 days to 90 ERERREKRREEEERB%30
days from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit BZEOHANZH - AEBHEEBX
policy are set out in note 31(a). i — S FBERNMEE3I@R)
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
B T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R Y =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOET)

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) = 22. BWRARHMBUR () .
(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable (b) BUERRREREERE
Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills receivable MERERRKREREE ZRERS
are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is AEEESHRINBERT - BRIEAXE
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case B 1815 B % UK B 5% FIE B 7T A2 1 R
the impairment loss is written off against trade debtors and bills K EENBEESEGEEREWR
receivable directly (see note I(m)(i)). MR EWEE M (2R MEEI(m)
() &
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year, FARZREBRENED (BEENR
including both specific and collective loss components, is as follows: HEEBERM) T :
The Group The Company
rEH AN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—RBRNE —ETN\E —BBAF Z2IN\F
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
T F FrT Fr
At Ist April RmA—A 2,324 7,568 381 1,770
Impairment loss WIEEE 2 BR
recognised/ (#m)
(reversed) 3,609 (5,244) (180) (1,389)
At 31st March R=BA=+—H 5,933 2,324 201 38l

At 31st March, 2009, the Group’s and the Company’s trade debtors
and bills receivable of $5,993,000 (2008: $14,112,000) and $259,000
(2008: $8,702,000) respectively were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired receivables related to customers
that were in financial difficulties and management assessed that
only a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts of $5,933,000
(2008: $2,324,000) and $201,000 (2008: $381,000) respectively
were recognised. The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances.

ANNUAL REPORT

R-ZZEZAF=ZA=+—H &&H
KR A a7 B £5,993,000Tt (ZEF
JUEE  14,112,0007T) &259,0007T (=
ZEF )\ £ :8,702,0007T) 2 FE U BR &K
REREBRENEESLHBRME -
ZERNEEMBABTFERH
MmERETARPETHREZEREY
Rz—E1 - At CHER ZE 3
RIFREHE D B £5,933,000T (= F
Z )\ :2,324,0005T) £%201,0007T (=
ZTF)\E 1 381,0000T) o AN 5 [F I &
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
kR L /K A5 B 2 A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 3R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_TTNFZRAZ+—HILFELETH)

(c) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that are

neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are

B AR E A fE WK ()

fef RO B 2 FE W RR R % FE W R 4B
I R A8 B =K B 4 452 1 R 1B 2 B UK AR
RRERERBREDFAOT :

as follows:
The Group The Company
rEH ARAF
2009 2008 2009 2008
—BRAF —FTENF —RELE —BINF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
T Tz FrT ST
Neither past due b 5 380 A =5 0R B
nor impaired 126,724 150,631 69,730 81,290
Less than 61 days mHE D6l R
past due 22,977 45,323 7,861 13,816
61 — 90 days BIH61 E90H
past due 2,028 3,820 53 414
More than 90 days BHA90A WL
past due 2,074 7,820 636 1,409
27,079 56,963 8,550 15,639
153,803 207,594 78,280 96,929

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of

default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group

does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
B T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 3R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-—BBAF=A=T—AILEE CUETH)

719 1 1220 AL T A IR g g R g e b o Rk . e R
The Group The Company
REH AT
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EENAFE ZBENEFE ZBBAE ZZTTN\F
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
FT T Fr T
Pledged deposits SRITIR M ER
with banks 9,070 = - =
Deposits with banks have been pledged to banks as security for ETRITFEFIRFFRT EFAER
bills payables of $9,070,000 (2008: $Nil) (note 25). = 159,070,000 (ZBBNEF  F) 2
AR (MHEE25) ©
24. CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS .= 2. BHERBESE/Y ...
The Group The Company
rEE AN
2009 2008 2009 2008
“ETAF —TTN\F —TEAF —TINF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
F F Fr T
Deposits with banks with EFHBLR=MEA
original maturity date HER1T 7 K
less than three months = 32,700 = 32,700
Cash at bank and in hand BITEREFERRRE 116,153 64,138 38,945 8,98I
Cash and cash equivalents HENEESZEEY 116,153 96,838 38,945 41,681
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

B o B K &5 R A #
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 765 S 2R BfY =
For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_ZTZNF=HA=+—RHILFE (L&)
25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES .......... 25 5. BURRRAEMLENR ...
The Group The Company
REH ZA/N|
2009 2008 2009 2008
“BEARE ZZTERN\F ZBEEAFE ZEFNF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr T Fr Fr
Trade creditors FE 1 BR 3K 100,270 156,594 60,530 81,752
Bills payable EAEE 18,254 8,891 5,606 4,342
Accrued charges and EtEBRR
other creditors E&FENE" 76,311 108,133 23,390 31,201
Amounts due to FESRE M;IE
related companies 4,591 3,709 - -
Amounts due to FEEEE N T
associates and jointly REENTNRE
controlled entities 2 7,686 371 1,515
Amount due to FEAS —RERFRIE
a shareholder 1,796 3,326 = -
Amounts due to FEATBY B D R FRIB
subsidiaries - - 27,271 42,858
201,224 288,339 117,168 161,668

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled

within one year.

The amounts due to subsidiaries, related companies, associates,

jointly controlled entities and shareholder are unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

Bills payables of the Group amounting to $9,070,000 are secured

by the pledged deposits of the Group amounting to $9,070,000

(note 23).

ANNUAL REPORT
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
kR L 8K F

A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 3R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-—BBAF=A=T—AILEE CUETH)

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors and bills

payable with the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet

REFRBREERNRIAREMEN
HABUTRE D BN IR E

date: HEE
The Group The Company
rEE A
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEBAE ZEENE ZBEAF ZEETN\F
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
FT T T F o
Current S 381 £9 85,843 102,409 45,571 53,262
Less than 61 days BHD 6 R
past due 28,383 26,772 19,842 7,766
61 — 90 days past due w eI HZE90H 1,971 11,562 228 8,907
More than 90 days BEHI90RA WL £
past due 2,327 24,742 495 16,159
Amounts past due PS5 32,681 63,076 20,565 32,832
Trade creditors and EAERFAREMNZE
bills payable 118,524 165,485 66,136 86,094
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
kR L /K A5 B 2 A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 3R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_TTNFZRAZ+—HILFELETH)

PAIM LN LB L iR ot B @ 8 0 e ol Jo S § SR i
At 3Ist March, 2009 and 3Ist March, 2008, all bank loans were MR-EFENANR_ZEENE=A=1+—
repayable within | year or on demand and were secured as follows: HAIERTERVER-—FRHIR

EREE S RITEFERBRUT ¢

The Group The Company
rEE FNNE
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EENFE —EENFE ZBEAF —EZINF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
FT T FT T
Bank loans IRITE M
~ secured - B 44,420 42,184 34,669 34,920
_ unsecured — B IK IR 40,000 36,250 40,000 32,500
84,420 78,434 74,669 67,420
As at 31st March, 2009, bank loans of the Group and the Company R-ZBEAF=ZA=+—H &K
amounting to $44,420,000 (2008: $42,184,000) and $34,669,000 B & & N 7 2 5l #544,420,000T (==
(2008: $34,920,000) were secured by bills receivable of the Group Z N\ 1 42,184,0007T) 34,669,000
and the Company amounting to $44,420,000 (2008: $42,184,000) T (ZZEEZFE )N\ F : 34,920,0007T) 2 FE
and $34,669,000 (2008: $34,920,000) respectively (see note 22). N ZE 4£44,420,000T (ZEE )\ F
42,184,0007T) }34,669,0005T (Z &=
JUEE ©34,920,0005T) 2 $R 1T B R AE
KR (2B MEE22) ©
As at 3lst March, 2009, the Group was in compliance with the AEBR-ZEEANF=ZA=Z+—HE
financial covenant of its banking facilities. BITRFHBITEEMNIMEIGE -

ANNUAL REPORT 08/09 4 ¥4 #
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R Y =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOET)

27. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

In Hong Kong, the Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of $20,000. The employer’s contributions to the

MPF Scheme vest immediately.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Exempted
ORSO retirement benefit scheme for those employees who were
eligible to participate in the scheme. This scheme is operated in
a way similar to the MPF scheme, except that when an employee
leaves the scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group’s employee
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable
by the Group are reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited
employer’s contributions or refunded to the employer. The amount
of employer’s contributions forfeited during the years ended 3lst
March, 2009 and 2008 was immaterial.

The employees of certain subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
a state-sponsored retirement benefit scheme organised by the local
government in the PRC.The subsidiaries are required to contribute,
based on a certain percentage of payroll, to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to these retirement benefit schemes is to make the

required contributions under the terms of the schemes.

L EERKER

RER AEECERBFHMEIES
AERGIATARERSERE S
Bz RERBUEMRBHMEIES
B (MaREstE)) - RESBER
HOITZREREAZ R RERFIRAK
AEREZREE  EEBFAMEIES
a8 MBS AR ER/KEMNRE
B HBUETIAEE -REBRES
P8 BERHESHEAHZ B
BEEEZBABD 2R -
HEEAEERAZLRAZBR - &
EERESHEMNE BEXORES
FREEH MRS RBES -

TEBTACEKSHERHMEAES
HEBERNKTE 2 EERTE
ZE BB RBESTE AR
g MERENNTEEXKEZEEAR
SEEEMMAEE WRRZEE
HEEREREEERRZEHABR
BEF R-ZEZFEAR-ZENE=
B=t—BFEEARSZWRZEEMR
ZHERRK-

EFEREASEBRMNBAR ZEE
DHEESRNEAMCBIdEEE
REBETEIZHE - ZEMBRRAAR
BETEzETHEDLAFHRKEF
PRI - AEBERR K8 R FH B AT
AEsH-—BERINZAEREZ

K o
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
kR oL /K A5 B A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 35 3R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-PPAF=A=1—BLLFE (LOETH)

28. INCOMETAX INTHE BALANCE SHEET = 28 HESSRATSHAEHR. .
(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents: () EEEBERMTNAHEFAEHA
The Group The Company
REE ARAF
2009 2008 2009 2008
—RRFAF —FENF —RELE —TENF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
F = Fr T
Provision for Hong Kong WNEE
Profits Tax for the year EBFEHEE 12,179 8,728 5,015 6,894
Provisional Profits [SENELE . CR=S)
Tax paid (6,628) (3,963) (5,054) (1,121)
5,551 4,765 39) 5,773
Balance of Profit Tax BEFEMRSEH
provision relating EfF LR
to prior years 2,712 2,740 2,740 2,740
8,263 7,505 2,701 8,513
Tax provision of BN B D B EAS TR
overseas subsidiaries EE 300 2,189 = -
Net tax payable EBIEFEEE 8,563 9,694 2,701 8,513
Representing: K& :
Tax recoverable A IEF A (242) (1,008) - =
Tax payable FEAS B IR 8,805 10,702 2,701 8,513
8,563 9,694 2,701 8513
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
B T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bR e R

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-—BBAF=A=T—AILEE CUETH)
28. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised:
(i) The Group
The components of net deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the

28. EEEBRATHEBH (&)
(b) CERBELFREHR(BE) AF:
(i) FTEH
EEGRECEEEBERBERNEL
FER(EE) /AEFENA

movements during the year are as follows: REBDMAFEZFHMT :
Depreciation
Future allowances Provision
benefit  Revaluation  Revaluation  in excess of Provision for
of tax of investment of other  therelated  for obsolete long service
losses  properties  properties depreciation stock  payments Total
T bl
i1 R& ft  FEORE ol R
ARRIE  DXER NEER HE  HEBE  BESRR 4%
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i Fr Fr i 7 Fz 7
Deferred tax arising from: KHTHEEH
ELHE
At Ist April, 2007 R-B2LEMA-H ¥ 12,922 3818 434 (355) - 16,819
Exchange adjustments ERHR 2 310 3 L = = 310
Charged(credited) to the REERIT/GEA)
income statement - 2,782 - 918 309 (5,225) (1,216)
Effect on deferred tax balance | HEFEHMA - BEL
at Ist April resulting from figRasnzze
a decrease in tax rate - (100) - (20) - - (120)
At 315t March, 2008 R-BENE
ZB=t-H - 15,914 3,818 1,332 (46) (5,225) 15,793
At st April, 2008 R-ZENEMA-H — 15,914 3818 1332 (46) (5,225) 5,793
Exchange adjustments ERRZ . 9l — = 0} (118) (29)
Credited to the REERTA
income statement (173) (497) - (I15) (3,709) (1,003) (8,097)
At 315t March, 2009 R-BE0F
Zh=t-H (2,113) 15,508 3,818 1,217 (3,757) (6,346) 1,667
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR T /KA B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 3R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-BPAS=A=1—BLLFE (LOETH)

28.

(i)

A

INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 28. EEEERMTHNAEH (&)
(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: (continued) (b) ERAELFMEH (EE) A
(%)
The Company (i) ARE
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised EEEEEBERERNVELERSE
in the balance sheet and the movements during the year are MOEE) BBENEARBHHN
as follows: RXEESHWT :
Depreciation
allowances
Revaluation  Revaluation in excess of Provision
of investment of other  the related for obsolete
properties properties depreciation stock Total
BB
RENFE Hit%  FENRE BEEE
Eft Eft RHE B wE
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr F Fr F
Deferred tax arising from: KE T5I&BE
BEHE -
At Ist April, 2007 R-ZELE
mA—H 13,864 3818 281 (309) 17,654
Charged to the TEERRIZ
income statement 2,960 - 918 309 4,187
Effect on deferred tax balance | FiRFEH
at Ist April resulting from M A—HIELER
a decrease in tax rate ey inhed - Svd-7% 4 (300) = (20) S (320)
At 31st March, 2008 R-Z2ENF
=A=1+-H 16,524 3,818 1,179 - 21,521
At Ist April, 2008 R-ZBENE
mA—H 16,524 3818 1,179 - 21,521
Credited to the TERRTTA
income statement (2,391) - (39) - (2,430)
At 31st March, 2009 R-BELE
=B=1+-H 14,133 3,818 1,140 - 19,091
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
B T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 75 3 2% Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOET)
28. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: (continued)

(i) The Company (continued)

28. EEREXRMTIHRES (&)

(b) BRERBELFEH (BE) AF:

(&)
(i) A2 A (&)

The Group The Company
REE ARATF
2009 2008 2009 2008
—RBRAE ZETN\E —BBAF ZZ2IN\F
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
F a7 Fr Fr
Net deferred tax EEEAERERN
assets recognised ELEREH
in the balance EEFE
sheet (7,765) (1,204) - -
Net deferred tax TEEAGERERN
liabilities i 5E FT S Bt
recognised in the BEFE
balance sheet 15,432 16,997 19,091 21,521
7,667 15,793 19,091 21,521

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note I(t), the
Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax
losses of $8,400,000 (2008: $6,825,000) attributable to certain
subsidiaries as the directors consider it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will
be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. Tax losses
of $4,725,000 (2008: 4,237,000) incurred by PRC subsidaries will
expire in five years after they are incurred while the remaining tax
losses of $3,675,000 (2008: $2,588,000) do not expire under the

relevant current tax legislation.

118

(c) RERNELEFRESHEE

REMEIOMBZEHEE &~&
B 5 R & T M B A 5] 4 £08,400,000
TT(ZZZ)\F : 6,8250007T) I AT 3K
HNEERIAEANELFRESREE -
RESTABAREEBE 2B KA ERE
ERNREHRERMmS  FAUHBAZ
518 LUK S5 AR SR ER B & R 2 7] 8¢
HRIE - FENHBLBRESHER
4,725,000t (ZZFF )\ §F : 4,237,000
T HEREEHERFRER  RE
BERRITRBEEN RN EHRE
#83,675,0007T (== F )\ 12,588,000
) AERER e
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR T /KA B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥ HR R Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_TTNFZRAZ+—HILFELETH)

ANNUAL REPORT

29. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS

A

CREBRESER

The Group The Company
rEE NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEBAE ZEENF ZBEAF ZEBEENF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr 70 Fr o
At Ist April REmA—A 24,531 3,591 2,084 1,946
Exchange adjustments R 472 = - =
Add: Additional provisions R EEE G N
made 8,430 21,131 2,375 138
Less: Payments during W ERTR
the year (98) = - =
Less: Reversal of provision B RO = (191 - =
At 31st March R=ZA=+—H 33,335 24,531 4,459 2,084

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is
obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment
in certain circumstances to employees who have completed at
least five years of service with the Group. The amount payable is
dependent on the employees’ final salary and years of service, and
is reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement
schemes that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
The Group does not set aside any assets to fund the above

remaining obligations.

Under the PRC Labour Contract Law, the Group is obliged to
make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to employees. The amount payable is dependent on
the employees’ final salary and years of service. The Group does

not set aside any assets to fund the above remaining obligations.

08/09 4 JE4E it

REEB(ERIEA)  EEBEEQ
BEFEZELRFEMESETHERTE
EEENEENH -—FBNEHE -
XNNERDRBEEENRELFETR
RBFHMEE  XHNKRESTEER
RBAGHEIT B RSP EEMEZRK
B EEIEBHEMNEEURMS L
MRERM B ©

RETBEEHEEE  FEAEEMD
EETERTELZENESNE -
EBNETHE - IXNNESEIIRERE
ENERFERRBFEAMEE - &
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR L /K A5 B

A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR S

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-—BBAF=A=T—AILEE (CUETH)

30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

The Group

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

30. AR FE

(a) &5HE

ERBHADERERAA
Land and
Capital Goodwill  Investment ~ buildings
Share Share  redemption  Exchange arisingon revaluation revaluation Other Retained Minority Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve  consolidation reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Equity
Bx FaRA hE  LHRER bR
By RGEE  MERE  EXER fEECER EGER O EHRE AMEE  REEN 4% BRER  #RER
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
7 i i i i r 7 iz i iz iz r
At Ist April, 2007 W-2S3tEMA-R 105,184 102783 4l 6817 (4,174 40 20309 5507 19454 67873l T4 619477
Dividend approved inrespectof | AEEAHERRL-EE
the previous year nate 10(5) | BRE A1) - - - - - - - (31,555) (31,555) - (31555)
Exchange differences on BEEENANELY
trandlation of the fnancl BHRRENEE
statements of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong - - 001 - - - - piNE] - 030
Share of associates' and EUBEAARAEAR
jointly controlled entites’ EXfE
exchange reserve - - 39,051 - - - - - 39,051 - 39,051
Profit for the year KERER = - - - - - - 149240 14940 (%) 141950
Appropriation to reserves BiGE = 3 - - - - 179 (179) - - -
Dividend declared in respect of | ZEETEHRE
the current year (note 10 (g) (i) - - - - - - - (l0518) (10518 - (l0518)
Capital nection by HERRRARA
minority shareholders - - - - - - - 314 314
At 3]st March, 2008 it 27163
ZR=t-R 105,184 102,753 48l 06,099 (42,174) 400 20309 1,36 577,892 836,180 m 838,950
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

Bow oW ok A R A A
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #S SR M ot
For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-—BBAF=A=T—AILEE (LUETH)
30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) .. . ...  30. BERBEG@E) ...
The Group (continued) (@) X%5H (&)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ERENALARERAA
Land and
Capital Goodwill  Investment ~ buildings
Share Share  redemption  Exchange arisingon  revaluation revaluation Other Retained Minority Total
capital - premium reserve reserve  consolidation reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Equity
& FaEA RE&  1HRER o8
R&  BBEE  RERE  EXRR FELZER EHRR EMEE RERE  REM 4% BRER  #RER
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
7i 7i 7 7 i i i i i 7i 7i i
A st Apr, 008 W-2ZN¥BA-A 105,184 102,753 Ll 66099 (174 40 20309 136 57789 838,180 mn 838950
Dividend approved n respectof | REEAHERRL-EE
the previous year rate 100) | WREHEEip) - - - - - - - (37866) (37966) - (37866)
Exchange diferences on BEERIAREAT
transaton o the fnancal BHERCELEE
statements of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong - - - 5011 - - - - 5011 - 5011
Share of associates’ and EUBEAARAEDT
joinly controlled enites EiGE
exchange reserve - - - 9,129 - - - - 9,129 - 9,129
Accumulated foreip currency | i MEER 2
translation difference of an REEBENTE
assodate dealt with inreserves | BEEEREEER
transfered to the income
statement on disposal - - - (310) - - - - (310) - (310)
Changes in fir value of ThEERERS
avlable-forale ATEERD
equity securities - - - - - (358) - - (358) - (358)
Proftfor the year KEREA = = - - - - 7187 71877 20 67
Dividend declred inrespectof | AEEBERRS
the current year (noe 10 (g) (W) - - - - - - (104 (104 - (2104
At 315t March, 2009 R-BENE
=R=t-A 105,184 102,753 48l 19929 (2,174) i 20309 116 609,799 883,559 1,060 884,619
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kL /K £

R &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bR e R

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-—BBAF=A=T—AILEE CUETH)

30, BRAR &G (&

(b) The Company (b) AAF
Land and
Capital Investment  buildings
Share Share redemption revaluation revaluation  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
A RE T#HREF
kx  R0EE HORE EfRE  ERRE  REERY ag
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
fr 7 fr 7 fr r r
At Ist April, 2007 R-ZZt¥MA-A 105,184 102,753 481 400 20,309 372,986 602,113
Dividend approved in respect of FEEABERBRL-FE
the previous year (note 10(b)) WRE (B 100)) - - - - - (31,555) (31,555)
Profit for the year REEREF = - - - - 35,615 35,615
Dividend declared in respect of FEEEERRE
the current year (note 10(a)) (Hit10) - - - - - (10,518) (10518)
At 31st March, 2008 R=BENFZA=1-H 105,184 102,753 481 400 20,309 366,528 595,655
Land and
Capital Investment  buildings
Share Share redemption revaluation revaluation  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
& RE 1#REF
ke ROEE HORE EfRE  EMRE  REEN ag
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T Fr Fr 7 Fr 77 77
At Ist April, 2008 RZZENFEA-H 105,184 102,753 481 400 20,309 366,528 595,655
Dividend approved in respect of FEEANRERBRLE-FE
the previous year (note 10(b)) WRE (HZ10) - - - - - (37,866) (37,866)
Changes in fair value of THEERERS
available-for-sale equity securities AYEEED - - - (358) - - (358)
Profit for the year REERT - - - - - 28,502 28,502
Dividend declared in respect of FEEEERRE
the current year (note 10(a)) (Hit10a) - - - - - (2,104) (2,104)
At 31st March, 2009 RZBEAE=A=1-H 105,184 102,753 481 42 20309 355060 583,829
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
kR L /K A5 B 2 A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 3R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_TTNFZRAZ+—HILFELETH)

30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) . . .. . 30. RAEARGEHE#&) ...
(c) Share capital (c) B&
() Authorised and issued share capital () ZEREZTRA
2009 2008
—BENE —EENE
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
’000 $°000 000 $°000
FR FT FR F
Authorised: EERA
Ordinary shares of BREENSTZ
$0.50 each ZER 400,000 200,000 400,000 200,000

Issued and fully paid: ERTRBRRA

At st April, 2007, R-ZZLENA—F
31st March, 2008, —ZEEN\E=A=+—-H"
Ist April, 2008 and —EENFEA-BR
31st March 2009 —ZEEAFE=A=1+—H 210,369 105,184 210,369 105,184
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as EERSEEERUNTRHEIRNR
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share B WEHEREAQAARREAE LR
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with BER—ZFENLFZERE -EE
regard to the Company’s residual assets. BREAAFHBIAEELYEZERSE
R o
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves d) RENHEERAR
(i) Share premium and capital redemption reserve () Rz BEREXBELGFE
The application of the share premium account and the capital B EEREABERFEN RS
redemption reserve is governed by sections 48B and 49H 2B Z 2 EFBCQ R MI) 5488
respectively of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. 1R R E4OHIRFTE 8 -
(i) Exchange reserve (i) FELEE
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange ERFECEERESBUME
differences arising from the translation of the financial BB mErmMELEZMEBER
statements of operations outside Hong Kong. The reserve is EFH o ZfEE D IRE M EI(w)FT
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set out HeETBERER -

in note I(w).
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(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(i) Land and buildings revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for land and

buildings set out in note |(i)(ii).

The land and buildings revaluation reserve is not available for

distribution to equity shareholders of the Company.

(iv)  Investment revaluation reserve
The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale equity
securities held at the balance sheet date and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in notes |(f)
and (m).

The investment revaluation reserve is not available for

distribution to equity shareholders of the Company.

(v)  Other reserve
Other reserve represents statutory reserve fund. According
to the article of association of the subsidiaries of the
Company in the PRC, the subsidiaries are required to transfer
at least 10% of their net profit, as determined in accordance
with the PRC accounting rules and regulations applicable to
enterprises with foreign investment, to the statutory reserve
fund until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before

distribution of a dividend.

(e) Distributability of reserves
At 31st March, 2009, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was
$355,060,000 (2008: $366,528,000). After the balance sheet date

the directors proposed a final dividend of $0.09 per share (2008:
$0.18 per share), amounting to $18,933,000 (2008: $37,866,000).

This dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the balance

sheet date.
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Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to

finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes

in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For
this purpose the Group defines net debt as total debt (which
includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings, and trade and other
payables) plus unaccured proposed dividends less cash and cash
equivalents (which excluded pledged deposits). Adjusted capital

comprises all component of equity, less accrued proposed dividend.

During the current financial year, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from the previous financial year, was to maintain the
debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at a reasonable level. In order to
maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to

shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

08/09 4 JE4E it
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The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31st March, 2009 and

2008 was as follows:

A

(f) Capital management (continued)

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
kR L /K A5 B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 35 3R 2% Y o

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOET)

30. AN &G (&

(h EXEE(HF)
RZEZTALER-_ZEENE=H
=+—HB FABHLHABRERLE

MmE
The Group The Company
A%H KA
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EERFE  ZEEINE “EBNE —EENF
Note $°000 $000 $°000 $000
Wiz Fr G Fr F
Current liabilities: REEE
Trade and other payables EARAR
HAtpE 15K 25 201,224 288,339 117,168 161,668
Bank loans RITER 26 84,420 78,434 74,669 67,420
285,644 366,773 191,837 229,088
Non-current liabilities: FRBEE:
Provision for long service RERBELEE
payments 29 33,335 24,531 4,459 2,084
Total debt EEEHE 318,979 391,304 196,296 231,172
Add: Proposed dividends meERRE 10(a) 18,933 37,866 18,933 37,866
Less: Cash and BoEHEER
cash equivalents REZEY 24 (116,153) (96,838) (38,945) (41,681)
Net debt FEE 221,759 332,332 176,284 227,357
Total equity BB 884,619 838,950 583,829 595,655
Less: Proposed dividends B ERRE 10(a) (18,933) (37,866) (18,933) (37,866)
Adjusted Capital BHEER 865,686 801,084 564,896 557,789
Net debt-to-capital FREHEALE 26% 41% 31% 41%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to

externally imposed capital requirements.

RNAB R EM B QR R Z AR IE
BB AR E TR o
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ANNUAL REPORT

. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group
is also exposed to equity price risk from its equity investment
in other entities. These risks are limited by the Group’s financial

management policies and practices described below.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to time deposits
with financial institutions, trade and other receivables, dividend and
loans receivable. Management has a credit policy in place and the

exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of time deposits with financial institutions, the Group
only places time deposits with major financial institutions, which

management believe are of high credit rating.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount and for all new customers. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. These receivables are due between
30 days to 90 days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group

does not obtain collateral from customers.

In respect of dividends and loans receivable, the Group only invests
and lends to those with creditworthiness. The Group closely
monitors the repayment schedules of loans receivable and dividend

receivable in order to minimize the risk of default.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has
an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the balance
sheet date, the Group has a certain concentration of credit risk
as 11.0% (2008: 10.7%) and 33.9% (2008: 33.9%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest debtor and the five
largest debtors respectively within the manufacturing and sale of

garments business segment.
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(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet
including derivative financial instruments in the balance sheet
after deducting any impairment allowance. Except for the financial
guarantees given by the Group or the Company as set out in
note 33, the Group or the Company does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group or the Company to
credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of
these financial guarantees at the balance sheet date is disclosed in

note 33.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out

in note 22.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements

in the short and longer term.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-_TENF=RA=1+—BLLEE LET)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)
The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the Company’s non-
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group and the

Company can be required to pay.

3l. €@ T B (&

(b) RBELREMK (&)
TRFNAEEREARNIETES
RBERNEEANHEBRENER &
FIEREHNLERTENRESRE (B
BEEHFE SMBFEREER
ERANETENFEMAR REAEE
REARXNFREREAXMNAE -

The Group
RE
2009 2008
ZRENE ZZENF
Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted | year or Carrying  undiscounted | year or
amount cash outflow  on demand amount  cash outflow on demand
Crils aHE
KR —FRF gk —ERg
Bg BER Bé BREX
REEE RLAR BE REEE ik &E
$°000 $°000 $°000 $000 $000 $000
Fr fr fr r r Fr
Bank loans RITER 84,420 84,671 84,671 78434 78,959 78,959
Trade creditors IR 100,270 100,270 100,270 156,594 156,594 156,594
Bills payable EAEE 18,254 18,254 18,254 8,891 8,891 8,891
Accrued charges and other creditors EERREMERT 76,311 76,311 76,311 108,133 108,133 108,133
Amounts due to related companies N NG ENE] 4,591 4,591 4,591 3,709 3,709 3,709
Amounts due to associates and EABE N TR
jointly controlled entities SENFFE 2 2 2 7,686 7,686 7,686
Amount due to a shareholder B REZIE 1,796 1,796 1,796 3,326 3,326 3,326
285,644 285,895 285,895 366,773 367,298 367,298
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(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

The Company

31. 2@ T A (&)

(b) RBELREK (&)

ARF
2009 2008
ZRENE ZZEN\F
Total Total
contractual contractual
undiscounted Within undiscounted Within
Carrying cash | year or Carrying cash | year or
amount outflow  on demand amount outflow on demand
AN L aHL
AR —FRd gk -ERg
Bg BER ok REX
REEE RLAR BE REEE itk BE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $000 $000 $000
fr fr Fr r r Fr
Bank loans RITER 74,669 74,884 74,884 67,420 67,480 67,480
Trade creditors RS 60,530 60,530 60,530 81,752 81,752 81,752
Bills payable eSS 5,606 5,606 5,606 4342 4342 4342
Accrued charges and other creditors EERREMERT 23,390 23,390 23,390 31,201 31,201 31,201
Amounts due to associates and EBENTR
jointly controlled entities RENANE 371 371 371 1,515 1,515 1,515
Amounts due to subsidiaries EHBLARFE 27,271 27,271 27,271 42,858 42,858 42,858
191,837 192,052 192,052 229,088 229,148 229,148
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(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from long-term
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed rates
expose the Group and the Company to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The Group and
the Company monitors the level of its fixed rate and variable rate
borrowings, either through managing the contractual terms of the
interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities or through the use of
interest rate swaps. The Group’s and the Company’s interest rate
profile as monitored by management is set out in (i) below. The
Group’s interest rate swaps can not fulfill the criteria for hedge
accounting because the hedge relationship was not documented
at the inception of the hedge. Accordingly, the gain or loss on

remeasurement of the interest rate swaps to fair value at the year

end date is charged to the income statement.

As at 3Ist March, 2008 the aggregate notional contract amount
of the outstanding interest rate swap agreement entered into by
the Group and the Company was approximately $100,000,000
which was expired in April 2008. A loss of $219,000 arising from
the changes in the fair value subsequent to initial recognition was
recognised during the year ended 3Ist March, 2008. The Group

and the Company has not entered into any interest rate swap

agreement during the year ended 31st March, 2009.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s and the Company’s net borrowings at the balance
sheet date. The Group and the Company defines net
borrowings as being all interest-bearing financial liabilities. The

Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by management is

set out below.
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3l. €@ T B (&

(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (c) FEBER (&)
(i) Interest rate profile (continued) () FIEZE (&)
The Group The Company
ARE ARH
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EENE “ZTNE BN “EENE
Effective Effective Effective Effective
interest interest interest interest
rate  Amount rate Amount rate  Amount rate Amount
BRRIZ &8 BRAE tE ERAE &8 BRAE 8
% $000 % $000 % $2000 % $000
=5 T AiK fr  Eok T EiK I
Fixed rate borrowings: BERZREE
Bank loans RTER 0.83% 40,000 4.54% 36,250 0.83% 40,000 454% 32,500
Variable rate borrowings: TENEEE !
Bank loans BITER 1.67% 44,420 4.26% 4,184 1.72% 34,669 422% 34920
Total net borrowings FRELE 84,420 78434 74,669 67,420
Net fixed rate borrowings EEENFELER
as a percentage of BEECAMM
total borrowings 47.4% 46.2% 53.6% 48.2%
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BEEZHT

At 31st March 2009, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group’s profit after tax and retained profits by approximately
$371,000 (2008: $352,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits)
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the balance sheet date and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the balance sheet
date. In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the Group at the balance sheet date, the impact on the
Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) is estimated as
an annualized impact on interest expense or income of such
a change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2008.
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(d) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables, payables and
cash balances that are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily Euros,

United States dollars (“USD”), Pounds Sterling, Hong Kong dollars

(“HKD”) and Renminbi (“RMB”).

As the HKD is pegged to USD, the Group does not expect any
significant movements in the USD/HKD exchange rate. However,

management acknowledges that the Group is exposed to

fluctuations in the exchange rates for other currencies.

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the functional
currency of the entity taking out the loan or, in the case of the
Group’s subsidiaries whose functional currencies are HKD, in either
HKD or USD. Given this, management does not expect that there

will be any significant currency risk associated with the Group’s

borrowings.

During the years ended 3Ist March, 2009 and 2008, the Group uses
forward exchange contracts to mitigate its currency risk. All the
forward exchange contracts have maturities of less than one year

after the balance sheet date. As at 3Ist March, 2009, the Group

has no outstanding foreign exchange contracts.
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(d) Foreign currency risk (continued)

(i)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
exposure at the balance sheet date to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts
of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated

using spot rate at the year end date.

31. ST EH (&

(d) MRS ()

(i) EZFIHEEE
TRHANFEEREARATDRGEE
HAAS ZINERE  ZE N
REiETDEASEEERTS N
ERAEESEBEURDTINEE

CLPY A

SHEMEE-A

ERRAEZERNEEERZ
EHERGE RBEIEZ52A -

2009 2008
ZEENE It 3 1k
United Hong United Hong
Pounds  States Kong  Pounds  States Kong
Sterling  Dollars  Euros Renminbi  Dollars  Sterling  Dollars Euros  Renminbi  Dollars
£ By BE ARW ) #5 By B2 ARW® B
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i i i i r r r r r r
The Group KEE
Trade and other receivables | FEULEE S |k E 0 JEUisx 7 111,209 6,339 30,252 = 818 107279 40597 331 =
Cash and cash equivalents BERBLEEY 6,665 39,609 909 - 4880 2005 39162 917 = 1,659
Trade and other payables | EATRFREMEAR (665)  (53471)  (1,493) - - 4TS (436 (406) s 2
Bank loans RTER (T4) (43,683  (e63) - - - (17249 (26630) ¥ i
Amount due from/(to) B/ (&)
Group companies EEATFE 20,187 = = - (35387) 19,000 = = - 39673
Gross exposure arising RECEDEER
from recognised assets BENERRE
and liabilities aE 26,390 53,664 5092 30,252 (30,507) 19348 54829 14478 32333 41332
Notional amounts of forward | FE &S 2 &5
exchange contracts used NERNEREE
as economic hedges - - - - - - - - - (18,000)
Net exposure arising from | RECEREER
recognised assets and BENERAE
liabilities B8 26,390 53,664 5092 30,252 (30,507) 19348 54819 14478 3333 2333
The Company b
Trade and other receivables | B R At EK 25 72,365 1,796 3 - 818 62013 21,103 1,395 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBLEEY 6,665 26,807 909 = = 2005 33932 917 - -
Trade and other payables EARTREMESS (665) (39,481) (182) = = (978)  (52942) (405) - -
Bank loans 885 ) @8y 68 - - Sosel) sy - -
Amount due from/(to) B/ (Eft)
Group companies EEATFE 20,187 (105) - = - 19,000 - - - -
Overall net exposure azEk 26,388 125,654 1,860 3 - 20845 27,391 1,043 1,395 -
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR oL ®/ K A B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br RS SRR MY At

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—TTNFZRAZ+—HILFELETH)

(d) Foreign currency risk (continued)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis
The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group’s and the Company’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) that would arise if the foreign exchange rates to
which the Group and the Company has significant exposure
at the balance sheet date had changed at that date, assuming
all other risk variables remained constant. In this respect, it is
assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollar
and the United States dollar would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the United States dollar
against other currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes
balances between group companies where the denomination
of the balances is in a currency other than the functional

currencies of the lender or the borrower.

n

3l. €@ T B (&

(d) IMNEEBERS ()
(i) BEEZHT

TRITREEBARAEBR A
RAHHEARRABR - EREE
iR AT R B R RIER (R
RERER) B2 (RKRA
EHMGEABEEHESTE) -5
LS - THRER B M B 5 T 2 B
EEXTEREZTAEMERE
R2EMNSBMBANERTE -
BRESMEESEEARBNEG
B - MABBAERTI IR AT E
RAREEE USSR E -

The Group
TEH
2009 2008
—BBAE —EEN\E

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) Effect on (decrease) Effect on
in foreign  profit after tax in foreign profit after tax
exchange and retained exchange and retained
rates profits rates profits
EXxt#/ HBRILEIR Ext#/ HREBEAR
(T) REEFNZZE (TH) RERIzZZE
% $°000 % $000
Bk FT Bt F
Pounds Sterling REE 5% 1,102 5% 808
(5%) (1,102) (5%) (808)
Euros B# 5% 213 5% 604
(5%) (213) (5%) (604)
Renminbi AR 8% 2,021 8% 2,160
Hong Kong Dollars BT (8%) 2,806 (8%) (1,346)
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R R Y =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOET)

(d) Foreign currency risk (continued)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (continued)
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on
each of the Group’s entities’ profit after tax measured in the
respective functional currencies, translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date

for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk at the balance sheet date, including inter-
company payables and receivables within the Group which
are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The analysis is performed on the same

basis for 2008.

(e) Equity price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity
investments classified as available-for-sale equity securities (see
note 20).

The Group’s unquoted investments are held for long term strategic
purposes. Their performance is assessed at least bi-annually
against performance of similar listed entities, based on the limited
information available to the Group, together with an assessment of

their relevance to the Group’s long term strategic plans.

The Group’s listed investment is listed on the Stock Exchange
of Singapore. The listed investments are monitored regularly for

performance against expectations.

3l. €@ T B (&

(d) SRR (F)

(i) BEEZH (HE)
ERAVTD M2 ERRRE R
SEETREREEEYRE
AETREEAZEZBRELRE
TAHE5 2 AR ERRZ
BIRFS E48%E o

BRESMNEREXSHER
REGAEEREEBASAELE
HOERBHESMTIE  SFF
SEANARBEMNREARER
MIE ZEHAABARETH
DEEEEINERETE - &N
TRERBIIEBNMBHREER
ERAEEIREEMERNE
R -ZOWMNUZZEZENFZE
—EEET -

(e) REEME
rEBASHEREEATHEERES

£$20) °

ARBFEH LTREDBERDE
BAR HRADREBL L TERS
ZRARAEBAGRMERETE
D — ERRELE ©

REBZETRERFMEIESRS
Fritme- ERRESREHERHL
HEMzRR -
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TTNFZRAZ+—HILFE LETH)

kR L /K A B

A

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) . ... 3. E€@WIB&E) . ...
(e) Equity price risk (continued) (e) RERK (&)
The following table indicates the approximate change in the TRHAPIAEEHEEEBREE
Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) in response to AR RRB B EF (RRBEF) HER
reasonably possible changes in the relevant stock market index to ENIEEHENARSIEEE o
which the Group has significant exposure at the balance sheet date.
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
“EENE “ZINE
Effect on Effect on Effect on Effect on
profit after other profit after other
taxand  components tax and components
retained profits of equity retained profits of equity
HRH% HEf HBH% B
BHRRE E&HD BHNRRE E&H5
yegih7 a7 Bl E a7
% $°000 $°000 % $000 $000
5k 77 77 =5l i i
Change in Straits Times Index: BRETEYEE
Increase 1 10% = 441 10% = =
Decrease HD (10%) (421) (20) (10%) - -

ANNUAL REPORT

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) that would arise
assuming that the changes in the stock market index or other
relevant risk variables had occurred at the balance sheet date and
had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to equity price risk at the
balance sheet date. It is also assumed that the fair values of the
Group’s equity investments would change in accordance with the
historical correlation with the relevant stock market index or the
relevant risk variances. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2008.

08/09 4 FF4F it

BREINET  BRETEHIH
EERREB R ECREERE
£ WERAREHAELEEME
BzEMIA MEAEIASEAEH
REFHARZRERR HAEH
ZBRBEBERNRRBEANEEER 2
HREE TRRASEREREZ
AFEEEREERTEHIEER

A RE-BE AR EEET -
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T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 35 3R 2% Y o

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOET)

(8)

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially

different from their fair values as at 31st March, 2009 and 2008.

Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and assumptions

used in estimating fair values of financial instruments.

()

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

Securities

Fair value is based on quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date without any deduction for transaction costs. Fair
values for the unquoted equity investments are estimated
using the applicable price/earning ratios for similar listed
companies adjusted for the specific circumstances of the

issuer.

Derivatives

Forward exchange contracts are marked to market using
listed market prices. The fair value of interest rate swaps
is the estimate amount that the Group would receive
or pay to terminate the swap at the balance sheet date,
taking into account current interest rates and the current

creditworthiness of the swap counterparties.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
The fair value is estimated as the present value of future cash
flows, discounted at current market interest rates for similar

financial instruments.

Financial guarantees

The fair value of financial guarantees issued is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction for
similar services, when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate differentials,
by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the estimated rates that
lenders would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can be

made.

3l. €@ T B (&

(H A¥EE
FEEMIARSIKRZSEHEAR
—ERNFR-SBAF=A=S+-
BzAFEEEETK-

(@) AFPEE2E
WUTERT AAEH ERMIAZ AT
BEOEEFERBR -

(i) FEF
AT EEREER ZHERE
E FEHNBRXGREA-F LT
BEREZATFEERLETAF
ZERECHERMT  RIRE
TAZBERERFAE -

(i) PTETAE
EHIESHNEEDRELT
MEFE - MEEHHAFEE
B RBERANERRSEDHF
EEMR RAEEREERL
LEE B SR E S AT BEE o

(i) HEEEHREHK
ATEERRARESREBHR
BE YRECSMIANRT
ST EBLRFE o

(iv) B IER

ERHMBERNALEEDS
R 4% 0 JR B 5 48 0L AR 75 AT Uk B
WERAMET (MERBLEE
) HSRFEREZEMEE
MEERRBERERBERT AT
WERH BB AR - BT EEIE
FRAB R T BT B Y Rl R4 H L8R
(e EEEREL T RN
5 o
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
kR oL /K A5 B A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 35 3R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-—BBAF=A=T—AILEE (LUETH)
32. COMMITMENTS 32. AIE

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31st March, 2009 not provided @ RZZEZEAF=A=+-—H8 NHk%E
MBMRAELEF2ERAERENT -

for in the financial statements were as follows:

The Group The Company
REH A
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEBAE ZEENF ZBEAF ZEENF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
FT 775 Fr T 2%
Capital commitment BEAREE (TEE
excluding share of A% NT)
jointly controlled
entities:
Contracted for EHES
— fixed assets -BEEEE 19 281 19 281
Authorised but not EREERITH
contracted for
— fixed assets -BEEEE = 768 = 298
19 1,049 19 579
Group’s share of the REBGLHEE QT
capital commitments REMAH
of jointly controlled B ARRIE
entities:
Contracted for 254 1,222 37,355 - =
Authorised but not EREERETHN
contracted for 567 4,045 - -
1,789 41,400 - i
1,808 42,449 - 579
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Bt 75 3R R Y =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOET)

32. COMMITMENTS (continued) . . . .. .. ... 32 ZE@#) ...
(b) At 3Ist March, 2009, the total future minimum lease payments b) RZZEZEAFE=A=1+—H BREF
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: ARBRNEEHEEBRENHNRE
HEMNRBEAHAOT :
The Group
AEE
2009 2008
—eeAE  —2ENF
$°000 $°000
F7 Fi
Within | year —FR 2,248 7,816
After | year but within 2 years —FEREMER I 105
After 2 years but within 5 years “F#ERFR - 122
More than 5 years BELE = 439
2,249 8,482
Significant leasing arrangements in respect of land and buildings REAERRMEENSREAENEELER
classified as being held under finance lease and land held under BFREZKEHNFENLIHNERKR
operating leases are described in note 3. HEZHEEHRMEEIZ -
Apart from these leases, the Group is the lessee in respect of MRZEHEN  REBHBIERKE
a number of properties held under operating leases. The leases HAFENYENRBEA - BELHE
typically run for an initial period of one to three years, with —ROSTHB—ZE=F  WEBEE
an option to renew the lease upon expiry when all terms are ERINBBREDR  BERMBEKRRY
renegotiated. AEHEE
33. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 33. AEEERER

Financial guarantees issued

As at the balance sheet date, the Company has issued guarantees
to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to its wholly
owned subsidiaries. The directors do not consider it is probable
that a claim will be made against the Company under any of the
guarantees. The maximum liability of the Company at the balance
sheet date under the guarantees issued is the total amount of
facilities drawn down by subsidiaries at the balance sheet date
which amounts to $13,328,000 (2008: $11,813,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of the guarantees issued as the directors consider the fair value
of the guarantees cannot be reliably measured using observable

market data and its transaction price was $Nil.

ANNUAL REPORT

2R ENMBER

REER AARERETEENE
NRERFZRITRERRTIRMEIE
RO EZTRATRHERRIBTME
REARBIREHEFD « XD B RAE
EHERRENBRSEEAMBLR
REEE B SIB#713,328,000t EF (=
ZZ)\F : 11,813,0007T) °

EERAHBEZSERZATEEL
TRERI SE 3 A AT BB 5 BB R %
REXRZEE TR RRZEIE
REREMELERA

08/09 4 B 4F it



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

Listing Rules

ANNUAL REPORT 08/09 4 )¥ 4 #

kL # XK A5 B A ¥
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BF 75 3 2R B =t
For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_TENF=RA=1+—BLLEE LET)
34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS = 34 HEEEALZEARS . ...
(a) Recurring transactions () REMEXSZ
2009 2008
“BEAE ZE2EN\F
Notes $°000 $°000
Mz Fr Fr
YGM Trading Limited and its YGMEZBR AR R
subsidiaries (“YGMT Group”) HMEA® ([YGMTEE]) (i)
Purchases of traded products FEEBEZESER"
by the Group® (iv) 4,976 594
Sales of traded products FEEHEEFER"
by the Group® (iv) 44,103 40,845
Rental income received and REEC WK ER
receivable by the Group™ ES RSO (iv) 3,864 3,755
Management fee received and rEBEHREREERE
receivable by the Group (v) 804 804
Building management fee received FEFDRREREFSSEE"
and receivable by the Group>k 288 312
Commission received and TEBEHRRERASBA
receivable by the Group 805 =
YGM Marketing Pte Limited YGM Marketing Pte Limited (if)
Sales of traded products FEEHEESER"
by the Group>X< (iv) - 4,212
Wauxi Changxin Textile Co., Ltd. BERFHBERLT (iii)
Purchases of traded products TEBREEEZER
by the Group 36,610 48,993
Allied Textiles Limited HBELBERAT (iii)
Purchases of traded products AEEREEFER
by the Group 4,885 3,073
Purchases on behalf of and sales AEEBRBER
of traded products by the Group HEBSER (vi) - 33
Yangtzekiang S.A. (“YSA”) Yangtzekiang S.A. ([YSA])
Sales of traded products AEBEEESER
by the Groupﬂ< (vii) - 26,573
* Continuing connected transactions pursuant to Chapter [4A of the

BIELTRAUFEAAZETZISER
BR 5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R 2% Y =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOETH)
34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Recurring transactions (continued)

The

above transactions were, in the opinion of the directors,

carried out on prices and terms comparable to those offered to or

by independent third parties.

Notes:

(0]

(iif)

(iv)

(U]

Certain directors of the Company are collectively the controlling

shareholders of both the YGMT Group and the Group.

YGM Marketing Pte Limited ceased to be a connected party to the
Group effective from December 2007. The related party transactions
for the year ended 3Ist March, 2008 represent the sales of traded
products by the Group to YGM Marketing Pte Limited during the
period from April 2007 to September 2007.

Wauxi Changxin Textile Co., Ltd. and Allied Textiles Limited were
wholly owned subsidiaries of Wuxi Talak Investments Co., Ltd., the

jointly controlled entity of the Group.

As certain directors and their associates are collectively the
controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of YGMT
Group and the Group and the ultimate beneficial owner of YGM
Marketing Pte Limited, the continuing connected transactions and
the license arrangement constitute connected transactions for the
Group under the Listing Rules. The SEHK has granted to the Company
waivers from strict compliance with the disclosure and Independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter [4A of the Listing

Rules.

The management fees were charged for administrative, business
strategy, personnel, legal and company secretarial work, accounting
and management services provided, which are determined annually
between the respective parties after negotiations having regard to the

cost of services provided.

3. HBEEALT ZEARR S (&

(a) REMRZS (&)
EEERA LR 2ERRIGHE
REFBIYUE=ERNBFESAIEHZ
REEE -

Wi -

() ARARAETESHBAYGMTEER
AEBZERBRER -

(i) B=ZZZELHE+=-AFK " YGM
Marketing Pte Limited T & A& B
WEEAL -BE-ZZTNF=A
St-BLEFE BEATZXS
A-EERLFNAE-FELHER
RHBASEEEEEZEZEMR TYGM
Marketing Pte Limited °

(i) BB RFHBERD B KB ELS
BERAAYALAEEZAE LR
BERBREARIADZZEHES
MEAR -

vy ETEEZRBAYGMTEERLEE
BeERRR(EXERLETHRA R
YGM Marketing Pte LimitedZ A& E
mEBA Bt SEBRBERZRE
ARZHFEBRAEEZEERS -
BRXAEREBEMRBRNETEZS
REMEBEBET ETRAEI4AZH
BEROESBIBRMEZRE -

(v EEBRAERHEITHRIMF %K
HH - AB - EERDBAWEIE
EREERBER ZBRARH
EFRALSFRERRERE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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n

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—TTNFZRAZ+—HILFELETH)
34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

....... continyed)s mmas smana
(a) Recurring transactions (continued)
Notes: (continued)
(vi) The Group purchased traded products on behalf of Allied Textiles
Limited which reimbursed the Group at cost.
(vii) YSA ceased to be a connected party to the Group effective from
January 2008. The related party transactions for the year ended 3Ist
March, 2008 represent the sales of traded products by the Group to
YSA during the period from April 2007 to September 2007.
(b) Outstanding balances due from/(to) related companies,

associates and jointly controlled entities:

BREBATZCEARE (A)

REMRS (F)
Hiet - ()

(b)

(vi)

(vii)

FEBRFTHEAGSERLOABE
ZESERmYRBREANE -

B-ZZ N\E—AHRKR YSATHA
AEBNBEEAL -BE-_ZTZN
F=A=+—-HLFE BEAL
ZREB-_ETLtEFMAE-ZZ
tENAHBEAEEHEEZER
FYSA o

By (BR) BELT  BEQAR

BEQAERE:

2009 2008
—BTAE  —FENF
$°000 $°000
F7 F7

Amount due from YGMT Group FEWYGMTE B E 2,116 6,414
Amount due to YGMT Group A YGMTE B E (4,454) (3,623)
Amount due from/(to) W, (FE{Y) YGM Marketing

YGM Marketing Pte Limited Pte Limited7X 18 - (86)
Amount due from Chanson Ltd. EUWEHEZERQTKIE 3 38
Amount due to Yangtzekiang EARIBXEMRAIANRE

Investment Co., Ltd. (137) -
Amount due to Wuxi Changxin BB RIHH

Textile Co., Ltd. BRARRE (2) (6,511)
Amount due from/(to) Allied FEUR (FEA) 37 Bk B 4 48

Textiles Limited BRATRIE 959 (1,175)
Amount due from Wuxi EWESE FIRER

Yangtzekiang Textiles Co., Ltd HEBERL A 68 -
Amount due to a shareholder, A — IR R FRTE -

Chan Family Investment Chan Family Investment

Corporation Ltd. Corporation Ltd. (1,796) (3,326)
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
B T # KA R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AE SRR MR

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZZENF=RA=+—HBIFE (LOETH)

(a) Impairment of trade receivables (a) EBEYERFRE
If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of trade and THEBERERERERERRERWERE
loans receivables may not be recoverable, the assets may be EOREELINE ZEEETREER
considered “impaired” and an impairment loss may be recognised ABIERE] MREBEJESRE
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”. The carrying EARASTERFEISEEERAEIMEH
amounts of trade and loans receivables are reviewed periodically BR - EWRRANREFNEREEYE
in order to assess whether the recoverable amounts have declined HMELER UFEHERETKRE £
below the carrying amounts. The recoverable amount of trade and ELEBRZEREEEUT - EWERFIRE
loans receivables is the estimated future cash flows discounted at AN C S EREREUEEMN D
the current market rate of return of similar assets. The Group uses 5 0 SREEFAFTARRIIB S REIEHEL
all readily available information in determining an amount that is a He REBERMETANERUE
reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount. EHEANEZESEMIELINSE -

(b) Write down of inventories (b) WRFE
The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts of AEESEFERERD M EERR
inventories with reference to aged inventories analyses, projections EVHEENTBINEERNER R H
of expected future saleability of goods and management experience MREEENRAOBEFEEHER -
and judgments. Based on this review, a write down of inventories HMEENREEKZRNE G T8
will be made when the carrying amounts of inventories decline BEE IAEESRESENER
below their estimated net realisable value. Due to changes in MR FEENBE EREFNERR
customers’ preferences, actual saleability of goods may be different TEEELEEE BEREYHEEJRE
from estimations and the income statement in future accounting EETARE - ML fEEr A E AT RES
periods could be affected by differences in these estimations. BRANHEE -

(¢) Income tax (c) FifE®
The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions. KEBERZEREERE R B HAT
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income tax. BR TEEMESHEBEHEEDLH
There are transactions during the ordinary course of business, for B -MEBEEBBREF BHEZRS
which calculation of the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. st ENBREATEELIRTE - WRL
Where the final tax outcome is different from the amounts that BN AREIREALESEE
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax ZEEZEBEHEHZRENEEN
and deferred tax provisions in the year in which such determination FIEHRRIELEMSHBHEBERTE -
is made.
Recognition of deferred tax assets depends on the management’s BEEMESHEENERIEZHEKIEE
expectation of future taxable profit that will be available against BERE BUAREEES I A{EKH
which the tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual BEEENRRERB SRS -
utilisation may be different. FHESBNERBAB RS EMAE

EXE e
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
kR oL ®/ K A5 B A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt R SRR Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-BPAE=A=1—BLLFE (LOETH)

35. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 35.

(d) Valuation of investment properties (d)
The valuation of investment properties requires management’s
input of various assumptions and factors relevant to the valuation.
The Group conducts annual revaluation of its investment
properties by independent professionally qualified valuers based on

these assumptions agreed with the valuers prior to adoption.

36. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 36.

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ANNUAL
ACCOUNTINGYEAR ENDED 3I1ST MARCH,

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the accounting year
ended 31st March, 2009 and which have not been adopted in these

financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application
but is not yet in a position to state whether these amendments,
new standards and interpretations would have a significant impact

on its results of operation and financial operation.

ANNUAL REPORT 08/09 4 ¥4 #
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-BPAF=A=1—BLLFE (LOETH)

36. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOTYET EFFECTIVE FORTHE ANNUAL
ACCOUNTING YEAR ENDED 3I1ST MARCH,

In addition, the following developments are expected to result
in amended disclosures in the financial statements, including

restatement of comparative amounts in the first period of adoption:

36 REBZE-_ZFEZENF=A=1+—
ALEZFEFEC EMAEN
REMMIEE - FERARRE
AR E (E)

Mo EHTIHERSEEHRALD
AABTHBRERZBRESE 81
RERERABEEN LEHYF

Effective for

accounting periods et iE

beginning on B R

or after RELEN

HKFRS 8 B 7% 4R £ % B 58 85% Operating segments EENE I'st January, 2009 —EERE
—-A—-A

HKAS | S ERIE IR Presentation of financial g SR TE: I'st January, 2009 —EENE
(Revised 2007) (2007 F &4537) statements -A-H
HKAS 23 SEERI5235% Borrowing costs BE R I'st January, 2009 —EENE
(Revised 2007) (20074 £ 453T) —R-H
HKFRS 3 B 7% R 2= B 58 35% Business combinations 2854 I'st July, 2009 —EENE
(Revised) (153T) thA-A
Amendments to CHE -] Consolidated and separate GEREY I'st July, 2009 —EEAE
HKAS 27 E275 financial statements BHRE +A—-H
Improvements to ZRENEREUH IstJuly, 2009 or ~ ZBENE
HKFRSs 2009 ERER 2 B Ist January, 2010 +A—HF
—E-E§

—-F—AH
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

R IL WK A& R A F
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
(restated)
(EX)
note (i)
()
HK$000  HK$000  HK$’000  HK$000 HK$’°000
FET FET FET FET FE T
Income statement BEx
Group turnover EEEES 1,665,835 1,600,981 1,725,435 1,540,276 1,625,529
Profit from operations R T 73,188 65,278 114,526 68,551 48,669
Finance costs BMEMK (31,800)  (40,848)  (19,099)  (10,803)  (9,238)
Share of profits less losses of LB D BEFR B 18
associates (33) 3,474 (343) 1,523 1,151
Share of profits of jointly N brp |
controlled entities - 40,619 14,121 76,987 38,193
(Loss)/gain on disposal of associates HEBRENT (FE) Wi - (39,272) - - 4,684
Gain /(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARWE / (FE) = 960 (9,296) = -
Impairment loss of an associate & NTREER - (14,493) = (4,000) =
Net valuation gains on investment REMESHE RS FE
properties 6,180 23299 10,231 18866  (7,845)
Profit before taxation R0 A s Fl 47,535 39,017 110,410 151,124 75,614
Income tax FriE® (4,364) (11,002) (13,670) (9,174) (3,447)
Profit for the year REERR 43,171 28,015 96,470 141,950 72,167
Attributable to: ERER
Equity shareholders of the Company AKNTREZEA 39,195 25,275 96,706 142,240 71,877
Minority interests PERRER 3,976 2,740 (236) (290) 290
Profit for the year REEGF 43,171 28,015 96,470 141,950 72,167
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kR L /K A5 W

A

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

hERE

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
(restated)
(E3)
note (i)
Kt ()
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$’000
S5 £ 1) £, =1, 2 FET FET
Assets and liabilities BEEREE
Fixed assets BEEEE 599,369 224,334 240,239 262,849 249,137
Construction in progress EREIRE 877 26 42 291 609
Intangible assets m&RE 4,726 2,874 2,874 2,874 2,874
Goodwill (5K (6,588) - - - -
Interest in associates g N RS 246,912 14,810 14,671 12,110 6,586
Interest in jointly controlled entities EENTER - 281,788 314,042 428,655 477,224
Other financial assets HtemEE 7,786 9,014 4,586 1,453 5,986
Dividend receivable from BREEARRE
jointly controlled entities - - - - 28,678
Deferred tax assets EEREHERE 4,367 1,553 = 1,204 7,765
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE/(AR) 8 (41,989) 132,805 134,683 171,042 154,527
Total assets less current liabilities BEEGERRDER 815460 667,204 711,137 880,478 933,386
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (231,663) (83,589)  (31,660) (41,528)  (48,767)
583,797 583,615 679,477 838,950 884,619
Share capital BR A 105,184 105,184 105,184 105,184 105,184
Reserves & 439,740 478,431 573,547 732,996 778,375
Total equity attributable to equity ERERADTRE
shareholders of the Company FEAERERE 544,924 583,615 678,731 838,180 883,559
Minority interests DERRER 38,873 - 746 770 1,060
Total equity BRAHE 583,797 583,615 679,477 838,950 884,619
Per share basis UERtE
Earnings per share BREA HK$0.22  HK$0.12  HK$0.46  HK$0.68 HK$0.34
Note: Kta -
(i)  The HKICPA issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs that were () BREFMASECHEMETEZHREITZ

effective or available for early adoption for accounting periods beginning on

MBHREER - YR -_FFTRFE-A—H

FEEMABZ S HBERR AT UREER
Mo —RERFEZHFETES -

or after Ist January, 2005. Figures for the year 2005 have been restated.
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